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HIGHLIGHTS

2008

Finandal Highlights
‘l 5 > Revenue down to USD 11 million compared to
o~/ Mtpa USD 31 mitlion in 2007 due to worldwide metal price
achieved mine and plant dediine and suspension of the production and sales
capadity n the second activities in Quarter IV of 2008

Fellof 2008 > Approximate 33% increase in cost per tonne, up to

USD 41 per tonne in 2008 compared to USD 31 per

6 8 tonne in 2007
%

of Znc recovery achicved Operational Highlights
inQuarter IV of 2008 > Due to worldwide metal price decreases the
Company deliberately decreased operations and

in November 2008 ceased mining, considering it
2 5 O MUSD non-profitable under the circumstances

> Ore mined down by 31% to 513 thousand tonnes

Puarurapivintd (2007: 738 thousand tonnes)
1554199 > Ore processed down by 32% to 444 thousand tonnes

(2007: 645 thousand tonnes)
> Zinc concentrate sales down by 22% to
2 , 2 3 5 21,359 tonnes (2007: 27,353 tonnes)

thousand tonnes of ore

hias been brough t the New Construction
urface since 2004 > [n 2008, SRK Consulting conducted a technical audit
of solutions of project development

> As of 31 December 2008 USD 29 million has been
3 O% Invested by the Company in construction of a New
of S total e Processing Plant
feserves at the Stolkiya
Denositas per Brook Hunt
ShatkiyaZine N.V.
Annudl Report 3nd Accounts 2008 L -
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AT A GLANCE

SHALKIYAZINC

Company’s Assets
The Company s tocated in proximity to the major zing
consuming markets of Asia, China and Russia.

The Company operates in Southern Kazakhstan and the
Company's main properties are:
> keyasset- mestw&yaune:mdenune
mmmmmmummm
in Kazakhstan;

> the Yalap Deposit: a Zinclead ore deposit 30 klometres
south-west of the Shalkiya Mine; and

> the KentauPlant: 3 zinc-lead ore processing plant near the
town of Kertau in the Southem Kazakhstan region.

ShalklyaZine N.V.
Annudl Repett and Accoums 2008

Vision and Values

Inthe face of challenging economic conditions ShalkiyaZinc had
to change ts short-tenn operating plans hawever the
Company’s vision became unchanged ~ we stitve ta be ane of
theleading mining businessesin the region of Kazakdstan, Russia
and Central Asia.

We befieve that inarder to reach this objective, we need to
establch avertically integrated company, including mine [ate
mining), processing ptant (ore processing) and zing smelter
{production of 2inc metal), at the same time enhancing aur
reputation as 2 progressive, ethical, and respected employes,
manufacturer and marketer of our products.

The Company has sofid set values and we use them to guide our
day-to-day dechlons and actions. These values have provided a
foundation fot the way we intesact with customers, suppéers,
business partners, co-workers, shareholders and the
commumities in which we operate.

Our values are:

HEALTH AND SASETY OF OPERATIONS

ShalkiyaZinc regards heaith and safety 25 the key aspect odits
operational activities. The hezfth and salety objective of the
Company & to ensure that no ane will be harmed in any way at
any of ShalkiyaZinc's operations.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

We strive to be the best in afl that we da, in order to become
eneaf the leading vertically-integrated mining businesses in
Kazakhstan and Central Asta.

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT

We strongly believe that the expansion of the Company is not
possible without development of its people; Notwithstanding of
the ament econamic conditions and the suspensich of the
production activities we strive to retain the key employees and
befieve that our future plans segarding the commencement of
the operations of the New Processing Plant will aflow us to invest
in lurther develapment of our key employees.

PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT

We belong to Kazakinstan and we stifve to protect s
envirorument from any hanm which might be caused by the
Droduction activity of the Company.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Cne of our abjectives s ta use the presence of the mine and
plant to generate kong-term sustainable opportunities for people
in theJocal communities.

~—
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Qur pillars of success

> Size and long life of the asset base

> Developed infrastructure

>Management team with a proven track record

Development Timeline

1963/64

Exploration begins.

1984/94
Construction of 3mtpa ore mine. Approximately
and instaling necessxy infrastructure,

Kazakhstan's requiatory authorities appioved the reserves,
Closing of operations and abandoning of the mine due to
the economic arisis.

2001/04

Comparnty aaquired Shalklya Mine assets at a bankruptey
auction financed by BankTuranAlem loan {2001). Acquisition
of the Kenmtau Plant. USD 10 milion spest an

the mine and processing facties. Mining secommanced by
February 2004. Aoquisition of the Talap Depuosit.

purposes

Youna

2005/06
Scoping Study by independent engineess (Austrasia) Pty Rd.
(ler) to determine strateqy for developing the mine,
Outokumpu completes pre-engineering study of a new 3mtpa
processing plant. AMC in process of restating reserves in
accordance with the IORC Gode. Exploration programme of

2007108

15mtpa capacity achieved &t the end of 2008, operations
were ceased due to significant decfine of wastd-wide lead
and zing market prices,

200911

Design and construction af a first ine of 2mtpa New
Processing Plant with conternporaneous increase of
processing capacity.

2012
Expected bunch ot the first Ine of 2mipa New
Processing Plant.

2012/2014

Expected constrirction of the second fine and achieving
4mtpa processing capacity.

2015/2045

Expected anmualvolume of mining and processing capacity
ofdmtpa.

Ay -



04

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

STATEMENT

DEAR FELOW SHAREHOLDER,

Year 2008 was chellenging for al mining companies wosidwide.
We sawa dramatic dedine in commodity prices including lead
and zinc. ShalkiyaZinc's operations was 3o atfected. The

achieved increase in the mining and processing capacity could not
compensale kosses caused by the ¢rop of the prices. Eventually
management made the deckion to hait mining and processing of
ore due to the low leve) of metal market prices. As a result, ore
wining was gradualy deareased and in Novermber 2008 mining
and processing was suspended by the Company.

Hawever having halted operations the Campany continued with
the programme of cortstruction of a New Processing Plant with
the plmned capacity up to 4mtpa. The dedision to suspend
operations and construction of the New Processing Plant has
been approved by the Minktry of Energy and Mineral Resources
of the Republic of Kazakstan.

We are syre that this project is ecanomically viable due

to the following:

> anincrease in production capacity;

> asignificant reduction in processing costs;

> there will be no costs related to the transportation of ore
from the minefiel to the processing plant: and

> projected gross margin s 33% at USD 1.903 pertoane zinc
price, that means that the operaticns would be profitable
evenwith the cutrent fevel of zinc price, A breskeven price i
estimated at USD 1,300-1,500 per tonne zinc price.

Istrongly believe that passessing Shalkiya Deposit’s resources,
and the canstruction of a pew modem high-capacity processing
plant will allow the Company to become one of the most
competitive lead and Zinc producers.

Cusrently much preparatory work for the construction of Lhe
New Processing Plant has been accomplished aiready, “Outotec
Technology” (Finkand) have made an additional are study and
finalized basic engineering of the New frocessing Plant which
confirmead high technological characteristics of this plant.
“Mekhanobr Engineering”® (Russia) completed a feasibity study
and started detafled engineering of the New Processing Plant;
"Outatec Technalogy” is accompiishing the prodiction of bal
mils while "Kazgiprotsvetmet” (Kazakhstan) has made the
update of the project of the mine capacily increase.,

The construction of the hoisting shaft and service shafts has
beenstarted, mine hoisting engines have been produced by
“MIDIEL AB™ (Sweden) and *“MIDIEL" NPF (Ukraina); mine
equipment of Atts Copeo (Sweden) and Sandvic (Fintand) has
been purchased.

ShalklyalIne N.V.

Annul Report and Accounts 2008

For identffcatidn purposes

ZllFr

The Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan induted the
project “Construction cf the new 4mipa processing plant and
increasing the capadity of Shalkiya Mine up to 4mitpa” inthe
governmental programme 30 corporate [2aders of
Xazakhstan", We submitted the teasibility study of the project to
the Kazakistan Development Bank, Currently we consider the
construction of the New Processing Plant in stages with the
2mipa pracessing at the first stage of the construction and the
subsequent capadity increase up to Amip3,

The constnuction of this plant with 2ntpa capacity and mine
extertsion works requires USD 50 mkon that approximiates 60%
of thetotal financing required to construct the second Ene with
total plant capacity of 4mtpa.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

1 2008, ShalkiyaZinc continued to make progress in improving
s corparate governance, aiming to bring structures and
practices more dosely into fine with the requitements of both
the Dutch and UK Corperate Governance codes,

Foiowing recosnmendations of PricewaterhouseCoopers the
Company introduced a new Board structure approved by an
Annual General Meeting of shareholders on June 18, 2008, The
Uniary Board replaced a two-tier strecture which incheded four
governing bodies — Supervisory Board and Management Board
in both ShalkiyaZinc NV. (the "NV levei™) and ShalklyaZinc ttd LLP
(the "tLP level”). Those were repiaced by a simpler structure,
which coosisied of the Unitary Board at the NV lovel and the
combined operating Board of Directors at the P level.

The Company's team has been strengthened by the
appointment of Tony Thontan rom SRK Consulting as Acting
Chiel Operating Officer. During his work in this position from
Febmwtﬂsmmw.mdwmdMHng
Engineer, brought his significant experlence in mining and
engineesing.

OPERATIONS
The operational focus during the year was to achieve 1.5mtpa
capadity of the Kentau concentrator.,

inthe first hialf of the year the Shalldya Mine aperated at reduced
capacity in order ta match the ore processing capacity of the
Kentau concentrator as testing and commencing works started
in 2007 were still continued in 2008,

In the second talf of the year the Kentau concentrater had
achieved planned capacity of 1.5mtpa, but due to the
contimros fallof zinc prices and the increase of losses the
Company did not ingease ore mining and pracessing and in
November 2008 operations were suspended.

However in spite of the fact that anly 59% of plannied amounts
of oremined duting Sanuary-October 2008, the technalogical
charactesistics were significantly improved and we achieved
68% zinc recavery which i the best recovery indicatar since the
launch of the Kentan concontrator.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The dramatic drop in world meta) prices and the suspensionof
operations negatively Inlvenced the Q ' Financial resut
for 2008.

\ Ay -
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fevenue decreased by 65% to USD 11 mithonin 2008 from LSD
31 milion in 2007. The main reason for the decrease was the (all
tn metal prices all over the workd and reduced sale volume. The

average seffing prices of Zinc went down by 58% and lead went

down by 5%. Sale vokumes of concentrates decreased by 22% to
21,359 tonnes in 2008 from 27,353 tannes in 2007.

The increase i cost per tonne was malaly due to the significant
tediction of the production and higher ore ranspartation costs,
The cost per tonne increased by 33% from LSD 31 in 2007 to
USD 41 in 2008, including @ 31% increase in extraction and
processing costs perf tonne and a 36% increase in ore
transportation Costs per tonne.

The trRanspostation costs per tonne ket increasing as ore
trersportation was pesformed by vehicles till mid-August 2008,
And by the end of August 2008 we started ysing rl transpost
to Tuskestan station which reduced transportation costs by
USD 1.5 por tonne.

General and administrative ("G8.A") expenses, exchiding
provisians and impainrment, increased approximataly by 14%
from USD 7 millonin 2007 to USD 8 mitlonin 2008,

Increate in GRA expenses was mainly olerved in payroland
retated taes by USD 1 milion. Additianally, the Company
incumed losses relating to suspension of the mine and processing
plant af appravimately USD 1 milion in 2008.

Oxtribation costs decreased by 23% in 2008 s compared to
2007, which was due to the fower sales of concentrate,

GoNG CONCERN

The Companyincurred a net 1oss of USD 43 milion for the yer
ended 31 December 2008. At 31 December 2008, current Esbifties
exceeded anrent assels by USD 6 miion. At 31 December 2008,
the accumukited defic amounted to USD 45 milion. Themain
reason for the nat loss & a significant decine in worki market prices
for our products and highveasts of processing and transportation.
As & result wesuspended prodection in November 2008, Ako, the
Company suspended construction of the new ore processing plant
whichstarted in 2008.

furthefmore, in 2009, the Company is In defaul undes the BTA
Bank kaan contracts which gives BTA Bank the right to require
the accelerated repayment of the bomowings in the amount
¥ USD 30 milion.

The Company’s ability to continue 25 3 going concem is
dependent on the abillty to rise financing:

i) tofinakze the corstrection of the New Processing Plant; and
t) torepaythe Company’s borrowings.

The Company woukd need an additional USD S0 miton 1o
compiete the construction. The New Processing Plartt is to be
equipped with inngvative processing tachnalogy and equipment.
Projeched ahmzat productivity of the iNew Processing Plant is
2mipadeing the first phase. Also, the New Processing Plnt i built
at the location of the Shalkiya Mine and therefore, unbke the oid
processing plart wil not require tansportation of the ore fom the
mine to the plant and related transportation costs,

\We plan to attract financing through a private placement of
additional Company’s shares.

ShalklyaZine NV,
Annudl Report and Accounts 2008

We are cwrrently In negotiations with a potential isvestor about
the conditions of the transaction. Also, management is in

of the Republic of Kazakhstan the "MEMR") reganding the
MEMRY waiver of the priosity right on acquisition of the
Company’s shares. Managemant bebeves that the probabiRty of
the transaction and obtaining the walver fram the MEMR and
raking additional capilal to fund the construction and
repayment of the Company’s bamawings is highly probable.

Mazxers

Despite the fact that markets are stil urstable, zinc has proven
to be avalmbie, kreplaceable oves the centuries,
While the global economy has stowed, the use of zinc remaing
high. This has lorcedinventory levess 1o be persistently near
10-year lows. Fundamentally, a5 Aslan and other emerging
markets upgrade their infrastructure and improve their fves,
massive amaunts of zinc wi be used for medical, battery, and
construction appfications.

tn gur view, at qurrent price levels the global economy s not
prepared for any sutden disruption in supply of investment
demand of the metal. Either factor could elevate the price of
aing substantially higher than today'’s.

Earlyinvestors realized this appartunity and cashed in on the
speculstive frenzy in 2006. Now with prices almost back to the
three-year low (2008 average USD 1,875 per tonne, which ks
42% lower than 2007 average - LISD 3,243 pes tonne), the
market has presented anather chance to recover which we are
sure will restore dermand for ShalkiyaZinc’s prodicts.

Ounocok

In 2008 in the face of adverse market conditians ShaikiyaZing Be
many of our peers workiwide had to change its shart-term
production plans as wed as plans for a new construction.
‘Togethes with many mining companies ShalkiyaZinc suspended
mining in Navembes 2008 in ordef to balance aurent zinc
susphss in the 2inc market in a siow-down ecanomy.

At the same time from a long-tenm perspective the Company
has to pave the way for future development. The best wayto do
this is the construction of 3 modem high capacity pracessing
plant situated at the Shakiya Mine. Currently aur plans are Lo
finafize the construction of the first 2mtpa processing Enein the
pesiod of 20102011 with Rs taunchin 2072 and consequently
increase capadity up to Amipa by 2015.

We strongly befieve that our strategy will help i positioning the
Company for a sustainable futive and to rapidly benefitt from
giobal ecanamic conditions once they eventually improve.

Finally, to all our stakehokders, especially our sharehoiders,
employees, customers, suppliers and the communities around
Ouer plants, we would ke to take this opportunity to thank them
for their imahyable input and continued support dusing this
chalenging time.
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OPERATIONS

SHALRIYA MiINE

The Shalkdya zinc-lead ore deposit was disoovered in 1963,
Exploration started in 1964 and continuad until 1979,
Engineering and construction of the 3mipa mine was donein
the petiod of 198071994 with mining operations starting in
1984 and kasting until 1994. In the period 1994/2001 the mine
was sremoved fram operations and drowned. In 2001 the
Company purchased the mine and conducted refurbishment t2)
2009, Mining was started agaln in Februasy 2004,

While mining the Company continued work on the expansion of
the mine and purchased mobile mining machines from Westem
producers. Qurently the capadity of the mine s about 15mipa,

Howevey, in 2008 the Company deflberately siowed down are
extraction from the Shalkiya Mine to match ose extraction to the
Kenltau concentrator ofe processing capacity. Law prices for lead
and 2inc congentrates together with high processing and
transpostation costs resulted in a 20% decreasein ore extraction
compared to 2007. From November 2008 until present the
Shalkiya Mine s temporarily dosed due to non-profitabiity

of the operations.

Historic PrODUCTION

Oremined
£000 tonnes) 8

360

e

|
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The Company is cumrently looking at different ways of redtteing
processing and transportation costs and plans to restore
operations when markets become stable, Cost reductionis
achievable through the mining capaxity incsease and the
corstruction of the New Processing Plant at the tenitory of the
$Shalidya Mine. This will allow ansportation costs, which currently
amaount to morse than 19% of operating costs, to be exiuded
and reduce processing costs.

ShaikiyaZlne M.V,
Anrnud Report 3nd Accounts 2008

The Shaldya Mine b 2 long-term asset, its reserves amount to
202 of ore, 6.6mt of Zinc and 1.7mt of lead, which isin fine
with the AMC estimate which complies with the 2004 Edition of
the Australasian Code for Reporting of Explaration Results,
Minera) Resources and Ore Reserves {the ~JORC Code™) and can
sequre long-term mining at the level of 4mtpa of ore.

{n 2008 the amesidments ta the Shalkiya Mine project were
fimafized. it allows moving the eventual production target up
to4mipa of zinolead ore per annum instead of 3mtpa. The
Company plans to gradually increase ore extraction up (o
2mipain 2012, and up to 4mtpain 2015,

Dree to reconstruction and development cusrent capacity of the
mine s 1.5mtpa, that s why the increase of the capacity up to
2mipa does not require much time or investment. According to
the Company’s infonmation the inrease of the capacity of the
mine from 1.5mtpato 2mipa will cost USD 21 millon or
appreximately 25% of costs needed tn increxse capacity up to
4mipa (USD 83 millon).

As part of the preparation to Increase capacity o the mine up to
4mtpa a newhoisting shaft was constructed, and a new service
shaft is cumently undes construction, as well a5 a service-and-
washing house and locker room. Hoisting and automatio
equipment have already been pucchased.

LOCATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

The ShalkiyaMine is located on the south-westom foreland of
the Karatou Ridge In the Kyzylorda region. &t is 17 kiiometres to
the north-east of the regional centre and raiway station in
Zanakorgan. The population of the Zhanakorgan ditrict i
about 70,000 peaple, with 5,000 pecpie kving in the Shakiya
vikage, 4 kilometres from the Shakiya Mine.

Radway ines connect the Shalkiya Mine to the Kentau Phnt, 25
well 2 to suppliers and customers in other regions of
Kazakhstan, and neighbouring Uzbekistan, Kyrgystan, Russia and
China. The reway station Zhanaknrgan s connectad to the
Tuskestan-KyZylorda motorway.

Tiwo 220kV HT fines connect the mine with the mafn Xazakh
power giid via a 220k 1o 10KWJBKW substation with two
A0MVA transformers. The mine is well supplied with wates fom
local water boreholes supplementing existing mine water
drainage. The mine infrastracture ks well developed and is
sufficient for further expansion of the capacity of the mine
uptodmtpa.
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OPERATIONS

KENTAU CONGENTRATOR

 June 2003 the Company purchased the Kentau concentrator,
otiginally bufk in 1963 to process ore from Myrgetimsay Depast,
which was depieted by the time of the purchase. The Kentau
concentratos commenced provessing activity in 2004, After first
rehabiltation of one ine of the cushing, miling and Butation
facities within the Kentau concentrator, the plant had capacity
1o process 0.5 milion tonnes of ore per annum. Auther
refurbishment of the plant started In 2006 including the
replacement of worn-out flotation machines which increased
the processing capacity of the Kentau concentrator from

0.5 milion tonnes of ore per anaum ta 1.5 milion per anmsm
tonnes in 2008.

However, due to the significant decrease in the zinc market
prices in 2008 and histarically high costs of processing and
transportation costs at the Xentau concentrator, processing at
the Kentau concentrator became economically not viable,
Accardingly, in 2008, the Company recognized impalment foss
onthe assets of the Kentau concentrator.

HISTORIC PRODUCTION

Ore
{000 tonnes)

7
£
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The finglization of moxiesnization of the Kentau concentrator
coincided with the drop of world metal prices and fespectively
for lead and zinc concentrates produced by the Company. Due
to the above mentiohed reasons pcoductionin 2008 became
non-praftable and the dedision was made to halt cperations
in November 2008.

ShatidyaZine N.v.
Annua! Repart and Accounts 2008

CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW PROCESSING PLANT AT THE
SHALKIYA MINE

The econamic orisis confiemed that substantial reserves of
Shalkiya lean aces can be effectively processed at 3 modern
high-capacity plant skuated at tre mine, which will aflow
decreasing production costs, exciuding transpartation costs and
decreasing risks of metal prices drop.

The constraction of the New Processing Plant is stifl a priority
far the Company. The construction ks planned tn two stages.
Nage 1 envisages the launch of the first 2mtpa ine in 2072,
with contemporaneous construction of the second 2mipa ine,
achieving hul 4mtpa capacityin 2015.

in 2008 Cstotec Technology (Fintand) conducted

study of the ore, which confirmed high tachnalogical
characteststics of ore processing: Zinc concentrate with grade
55% and 5% SIO, at 70% zinc recovery, lead concentrate with
grade 43% at 50% lead recovery. "Mekhanobr

(Russid) finakized (easibility study and started detalled
enginecsing of the New Processing Plant; Outotec Technalogy
started production of ball milk.

We expect that the reafization of this project will considerably
improve the grades of concentrates, decrease metal losses
during processing, reduce processing costs for more than 40%
due 10 dearease of power covsumption and better operational
effidency.
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RESERVES AND
RESOURCES

There are three deposits situated in the late Pabeozoic Akuyuk-Maydantal geclogical region, which forms past of the thrust belt at the
southwestesn foothils of the Karatau Ridge in the tenitory of Kyzylorda fegion in the south of Kazaktstan.

Thestratigraphy camprises of Middie-Upper Devanian teigenows red beds (Tiulkubash farmation) overtald by a carbonate sequence
compiising farmmenian, Fammenianiower Carboniferous, Toumestan and visean lormatians.

Pb-Zn mineralsation is stratiform andd hosted by two carbonaceous-pelticsticeous-Carbonate horizons within Upper fammenian
dolomites and sandstones.

SHALKIYA DEPOSIT

The Shalklya lead and zinc depasit is the most important depasit In the district. Other deposits are at Talap, ako awned by
ShaldyaZinc, and state-owned Burabai-Zhalgyzagash. Shalkiya is a blind deposit. & extends from adepth of about 20 metres nthe
north-west down to adepth of 800 metres in the south-east. The depasit covers an area of almost 6 kiiometres infength and up to
1.2 Glometres in width. The Shalkiya mineral deposit was discavered during a geochemical survey in 1963 and was subsequently
explored in several stages trom 1963 to 1994. During this period large quantities of geclogical datawere coliected In a detailed and
methodical mannes. The shaliower north-westem section was explored until 1979 and the deeper south-eastern section irxr 1979 t0
1994. Further core drilling and underground verification sampiing was undestaken on the north-westem section in 1986 to 1994, The
deveiopment of the mine commenced in 1984 folowing designs developed by the Institute Giprotsvetmet of Moscow in 1982. From
the stast alinfrastructure was installed o sexvice the 3mtpa production rate, incuding the sinking of two shafts to a depth of S80
meires to service the south-eastem section of the mine. The aperations were stupped in 1994 due to ecanomik reasors, followed by
the coliapse of the Soviet Union,

Within the pesiod from 2004 th 2009, 2,235,000 tonnes of ore was mined with Zinc 3.76% grade and lead 1.48% grade.

1n 2007 AMC Consuitants (UK) Itd restated Shalkiya’s Minesal Resource and Cre Reserve in accordance with the 2004 edition of the
Australastan Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Minesal Resouroes and Ore Reserves (the “JORC Code™).

JORC CampLIANT MINERAL RESOURCES (AT A1.5% ZNEQ CuT-OFf) AND ORE RESERVES (AT A1.7% ZNEQ BREAK EVEN GRADE)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

Quantity [} Zn ngrate PHometal Zametal
Category ) [l [ W) () ()
Mineral resource
Measued S88 1.00 320 370 058 188
Indicated 2056 0.70 310 340 140 640
Total measured and indicated 2644 0380 3.10 350 210 820
inferced 94 060 220 250 0.10 020
QOrereserve
Proved 42 1.0 330 3380 0A7 144
Probable 1583 040 320 360 121 51
Total 2025 0.80 320 370 1.67 636
ShalkiveZine N.V.

Anrugl Report and Accounts 2008
' > ;% M? A M
ICayfon purposes
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TALAP DePOSIT
mmmsmmwmmwmmzswmmlmmwnm
ShakiyaZine acriired the Talap Deposit in 2004, The Talap Deposit was discovered in 1984 and was evaluated in twa stages:

> 1984 to 1985 Prospecting and prospecting-assessment, Including Ground geaphysics, prospecting and mapping, deling and

geophysical logging.
> wsswlgmzminmyaplomﬁm.mmg130d:ﬂlholes.7ocnmmmpls.505mala\dmxelabmmtysca!e
metakurgical sampies from 46 10 327 kilogrammes in welght.

MWMMMmeMMMMaMWhm&Ammdm
Mndambaemnedhamkedmmutemtwsppmdmmm

me'l‘a‘q;ﬁ'elmnotmmwwmmmumWMmmmamdmm
Hectrk power s available from a 10V feeder from the main Shymkent to Kyzylorda 2201V transmission Ene appraximately 3 to
S kiometres to the north of the deposit.

tnmmmmmmmsMMmmmmmMmﬁmmmecmionotme
Austratasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Restlts, Minera) Resources and Ore Reserves {the “JORC Code™).

Tauar JORC COMPLIANT MINERAL RESOURCES AT 1.5% ZREQ CuT-OF AT 31 DECEMBER 2008:

Grade (%) ntq
Typeot o
Qansificaton minevakzalion (L] [, 2n R
Indicated Oricle and mixed 23 18 30 39
Sulphide 178 18 30 38
Total indlcated 201 16 3.0 38
Infesred 90% suiphide 48 12 26 32

mdmmmnmnmmmmdammmmwﬂm.mmmwm
inmemamammmmwmwhmdpmgawxmwmmwmhmmatbncmu
mdmmummmwmmmummmmmwmpmm
assets of the Tatap Deposit.

ShalklyaZiac N.V.
Annudl Report and Accounts 2008
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MARKETS AND

CUSTOMERS

2008 was marked by significant drops in both the demand and
supply of zinc.

The Zinc price has fallen significantly fram its high at the end of
2006 and hit ks low {USD 1,500 per mt) in December 2008, The
2008 average was USD 1,875 per tonna, which is 42% lower
thanthan the 2007 average (USD 3,243 per tonne) and 59%
lower than the highest zinc pricein 2006 (USD 4580 per tanne).
Howeve, starting from January 2009 siow price increases can be
abserved and average price for kanuanySeptember 2009 is USD
1.470 per tonne. The same growth trend holds true foslead, We
believe that the giobal demand for zinc, lead by China, i
restored, ieading to sustained higher pricss up to the level of
USD 1,903 pey tonne from 2012,

Further, the Company has the advantage of convenient logitis
tn temns of proximity to Chinese, Russian and other Central
Asian smeiters,

The demand increase restored in Chinas 3 good base fos the
Company’s future growth and deveiopment.

PropucTion

The Zinc industry respanded quickly to the siump of zinc
demand driven by the dramatic dectine of global economic
growth. b1 2008 Wie Company, ke marny mining companies
workdwide had to decrease levels of ore mined and processed
and suspended aperations in November 2008. Thus the
Company's sales of zinc cancentrate were appsaximately 22%
lower thanin 2007,

Howeverwe strongly believe that these industry adjustments, in
mmofammmmmamy.mvmgus
in view the Company will procaed with its grawth and
development programme which envisages the construction of
the New Processing Plart at Shaliya Mine. The schedule of
construction was amended in acoordance with cusrent market
conditions. [t was dedided to make construction in two stages.

Stage 1 envisages thefaunch of the first 2mipa fine in 2012, with
contemporaneous construction of the second 2mipa line,
achleving full amipa capacity in 2015,

We are sure that the canstruction of the new high capacity plant
wil improve technologicat characteristics and concentrates’
grades, degrease production custs and thus will make
ShalkiyaZing a highly competitive business in the conditions

of the recavering ecoaomy.

Shalklya2ine NV,
Anvuai Report and Accounts 2008

For idéntifighftion purposes
EllFr OUNG
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CONSUMERS OF ZiNC CONCENTRATE

Since March 2004 ShalkiyaZine has saki the majority ofits zinc
concentrate to the Almalyk Smelter in Uzbekistan, located 350
\dometres fram the Kentau concentrator. Trade s conducted via
theUK-regstexed trading company Chesiton Finance Limied.

The Company has chosen this smeRes 5 a principal customer
dueto the relatively lower transportation costs, lawer treatment
charges and other attractive commerdial tesms & offers under
the off-take agreement. The smeiter has an anawal processing
Cpacity of some 200,000 tonnes of zinc concentrate. in 2068
sales to the Almalyk Smelter amounted to 21,359 tonnes of Zinc
concentrate containing 9,500 tonnes of Zinc metal (2007:
27,353 tannes contalning 12,300 tonnes of zinc metal). The
variance between 2008 and 2007 sales in terms of tannage and
mieta) content is 22% and 23%, respectively, which testifies to
the minor changes of qualty of zinc cuncentrate,

CONSUMERS OF LEAD CONCENTRATE

In 2008 the Campany skt most of its output of lead
concentraie to China customer via the trading company
Baertala Mongolian Autonomans Prefecture Atashankou fi Lin
Trade Co. The Company has been seliing Jead concentrate at
prices Enked to fead metal prices quoted on the LME. in 2008
averall sales amounted 10 4,798 tonnes of lead cancentrate
containing 1,702 tonnes of lead metal (2007: 7,140 tonnes of
fead cancentrate contalning 2,848 tonnes of kead metal), The
mmmmmmmhtmoﬂmnageand
metal content i 33% and 31%: respectively, which testifies to
the minor improvement of quality of Sead concentrate.

Prace FORMATION

The Company sells conaentrate at floating prices directlyfinked
1o zine metal prices quoted on the UME. The price of
concentrate is adjusted tor a number of factors, inciuding
transportatian costs, metafurgical losses at the smetter and
treatrment charges for the processing of concentrate,

POTENTIAL CUSTOMERS

Potential ShalkivaZinc customess are located mainly in
Kazakhstan, Russia and China (17 2inc smeltersin the southern
and soxsth-eastem regior), the countries to which ShakiyaZine
alreadly sells s Zincicad concentrate. We befieve that the
mmmatmmmuwmmammdmg
of the New Processing Plant in 2012 will significantly broaden the
astomer base for ShalkiyaZine,

I/



CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

As one of the leading Zinc and fead mining companies in
Kazakhstan, ShalkiyaZine is sesponsible jor ensuring and
mmwmammmm

ewironmental protection measures. ShalkiyaZinc maintains 3n
active role with respect to local communities,

supparts local social programs with annual transters of

USD 8,000 to the local administration, smpporting the economic
and social development of the reginn. We cover the schoofling
costs for two talented students of Shalkiya and encowrage
tralning courses for our engineess and management. Indaing so
the Company & investing in the sustatnabdity of our business.

PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT
ShalkiyaZinc inits opesational activity s compEant with Kazakh
environment protection reguiations.

ShaldyaZine's production faciRties ane equipped with new
production equipment which minimizes adverse impact on
the environment of mine and processing plant operatfons.

Temonitor its impact on the environment ShalklyaZine annually
conducts an enviprmental menitoring, which ks appraved by
the Environmental Minkstry, costs of the monitoring amounted
to USD 5,820in 2008,

ShalklyaZinc ako invests in environmental protection measures
3 its production facitics, in 2008 the Company spent

USD 227,760, of which USD 42,390 has been invested in
upgrading esvironmental protection meastires at the Shafkiya
Mine and USD 185,370 at the Xentau concentrator. 77% of the
latter (USD 142,980) was the fee paid for disposal and release
of polutants from Bayaldyr taiings dump, Environmental fees
amounted to USD 7,510 on the mine and USD 9,180 on the
Kentau concentrator,

in compiiance with environmental legistation the Company
conduded emvironmental insurance poicy and insuramce with
the insurance coverage of up to USD 163,140 in 2008.

Duiing 2008 autharzed agendes conducted five inspections,
wihich resuited in aUSD 9,325 fine for the Company. Al the
breaches of anvironmental fegisiation were rectified.

In 2008 and 2007, the Company was a defendant i a fegal
action invalving alleged environmental pollution in the amount
of USD 3.218.000. tn February 2009, according to the decision of
the Collegtate Organ on Cvi) Affairs of the Southem Kazakhstan
Obiast Court the amont ctaimed fram the Company was
reduced to USD 1410.000. Management befieves that the
action can be successfully defended and therefore no losses

will be inturred with respect of the remainder.

ShalkiyaZing N.V.
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FINANCIAL
POSITION

At 31 December 2008 the Company’s finanidal position
weirsened due to the dramatic dvop of workl metal prices and
stspension of the Company’s operations. At 31 December 2008,
the Group's current fabiites exceeded curent assets by

USD 6:434,000. At 31 December 2008, the Group’s
acasnwiated deficil amounted to USD 45,329.000.

As can be seen from the Group's consafidated batance sheet the
Group's total assets decreased by USD 18 millon, which was
priondsily driven by the impainment of non-current assets in the
amuount of USD 16 milion.

PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During 2008, the Group continued investing into the
construction of the New Processing Plant and modemization
aof the technalogical baxsis of the Shalkiya mine. The total
investrments amounted to USD 11 miflion, induding
prepayments of USD 6 milion for the supply of equipment.

tn 2008, the Group recorded impairment of USD 14 mélion on
the assets of the Kentau concentrator due to the Group's
decision to cease the production at this plant.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Management's assessment of the recovesability of the deferred
texassets of USD 7 millon ks based an the plan to complete the
comstruction af the New Processing Plant and resume
production In 2012. Based on the deposit's resources, additional
are studies, and technologica! and commerdial feacibilty studies,
management believes that the Group wil genesate sufficent
taxable profits starting from 2012 to utilize tax (osses cany
forward recognized as of 31 December 2008 bafore they expire.

VAT RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2008 VAT receivabie amounted to

USD 7 milion. in 2008, the Group made provision for VAT
impalnment of USD 4 miion. At 31 December 2008,

VAT receivable of USD 4 milion is classified within non-curent
assets as the Group does not expect reimbursement of this
VAT receivable in 2000,

Subsequentlyin 2009 the Group received USD 3 miion, which
was dassified within current assets, in cash as rembursement
of VAT,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

At 31 December 2008 the Group's trade and other receivables
deareased by USD 3 milion which was mainly due to the
suspension of operations.

BORROWINGS

At 31 Decamber 2008 the Group bortowings increased by
USD 20 milllon. The cash proceeds were mainly used for
financing of opesating expenses of the Group and payments
to suppliers of equipment.

ShalklyaZine N.V.
Anrual Repot and Accounts 2008

purposes

£ YOUNG
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FINANCIAL

PERFORMANCE

Revenue

Revenue in 2008 decreased to USD 11 milfon which is by 65%
lower then the revenue tevel in 2007 Such decine trzinly vesults
from a fall in world peices and dearease in sales volumes.
Revenue from concantrate sale comprised 83% #rasn zinc sales
and 17% from lead sales.

On average LME zinc price went down by 42% and LME lead
price by 19%. Zinc concentrate sales decreased by 22% and
production levess decreased by 31%in 2008. As 3 result cost
per tonne af ofe increased by 33%. General and administrative
ms.em&gpmﬂommmmuaed

NeT Lass

Net foss far 2008 was USD 43 milkon (2007; net loss was

USD 3 milion). The Company recognized impairment in respect
Lo the assets of Kentau concentratot and Talap explorstion costs
inthe amount of about USD 16 milion, impaicment of VAT in the
amount of USD 4 mifan and provisions for doubtfid acoounts
andimpairment of prepayments and avaiable-for-sale
irvestments in the amount of USD 3 million.

Theincease in et loss ako reflects 42% decrease in the LME
price fos zinc concentrate saes.

ingreased general and adminsstrative expenses aiso had a
negative impact on the net loss.

Cosr

Production cost amounted to USD 21 mitlon which is lowes by
USD 2 milion than in the prior pesiod, USD 23 milion in 2007.
Qverall preduction volumes decrease resuited in a decrease of
production costs in 2008.

MATERIALS

Consumables and spares parts decreased by USD 't milion

{USD 7 milion in 2007 to USD 6 milion in 2008). However, costs
of consumables and spare pasts per tanne inaeased by 22% due
to lower production volumes in 2008,

POWER AND OTHER UTILITY

The cost of power and ather utifity decreased by USD 0.7 million
(LSD 3.3 miion in 2007 to USD 2.7 milion in 2008). However,
pawer and other utilty costs per tonne increased by 16% which
s mainly due to the decrease in production voksmes,

Lagour Cost

Labour costs decreased by USD 0.9 miBion USD 44 milion
in 2007 ko USD 3.5 mi¥on in 2008). However, labour costs
per tanne increased by 22% dueta the degeasein
production vohsmes.

ShalkiyaZine N.V.
Al Report and Accounts 2008

INTANTS LLP

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE {"GRA”") EXPENSES

GRA expussses, excluding provisions and impaitmeit, increased
approximately by 14% from USD 7 millon in 2007 to

UsD 8 m3onin 2008,

The increase In GBA expenses was mainly cbsesved in payroll
and related taes by USD 1.0 miZkan. Additionally, the Company
incumed suspension costs related to suspension of the

Kentau concentrator and the Shalkiya Mine of approxinately
USD 0.9 milSonin 2008.

Distribution casts per tonne decreased by 22% due to decease
insakes volumes by 22%.

Cast per Tone

Theincrease in cost per tonne by 33% was mainly due to the lower
production volumes. Volume of ore mined in 2008 decrezsed by
31% andvolume of ore processed decreased by 33%.

TaxAnON

In 2008, the Compadny incunred significant losses as a result of
the reduction In the graduction volumes and lower average
sefling prices for zZinc and lead concentrate. Fusthermore, the
Company recorded impainment on the assets of the Kentau
concenirator and Talap exploretion costs. Both, significant losses
and impainment of property, plant and equipment led to the
increase in defered tax assets by USD 4.3 mition. Deferred tax
assels recegnized on the balance sheet a5 of 31 December
2008 amounted to USD 6.7 million (2007 USD 24
Secovesability of the defermed tax assets is based on the plan to
compiete the construction of the New Pracessing Plant and to
resume ploduction in 2012,

INFLATION RaTES
The average rate of inflation in Kazakhstan was 9.5% in 2008
and 18.8% in 2007.
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UNITARY BOARD OF

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHALKIYAZING'S u&nm BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPRISES

M. Sarkytbayevis ShalkiyaZinc’s co-founder, GeneratManager of
the operating campany. Mr. Sarkytbayev has served as General
Director of Shakiyazing since 25 Novemnber 2002, by resolution
of the General Meeting of ShalkdyaZinc. Prior to this position,

Mr. Sarkytbayev held several simiar positians, inckiding Presilent
and Chairman of the Board of Directors of several companies
and onRnisations, induding ISC Araituz, the Defense Commiittee
of the Ministry of Energy of Kazakiistan, the Astana-Hokiing
Croup, and SOISC Caspi Neft TME.

Y
Henk van Wilen began his career in 1989 with traineeships at
Dutch and international fiems in various industries, including at
Heineken [n italy. Since 1994, he has been the Managing Directoe
of Pan-invest B\, at its trust office In Delit, The Netherlands.

RAMILYA AZELGAREYEVA
Exeative

Member
Mrs. Azelgareyeva has sesved as Director of the
Finandal and Economic Department since 2 May 2002. Prior to
this position, she held the positions of Engineer-Economist, Chief
Engincey, and Chie! Econornist at several companies and
organizations incuding the Institute of Xazinaimazzoloto, WP
Geointsentr,and the Mintstry of Geology of the Kazaihstan
Soviet Socialtst Repubiic.

Mrs, Azelgareyeva & also the author of methodalogical
recommendations (instrections) on the creation of feasibiity
studies on mineral deposits development. Thi methodology
was formsated in 1995 in accordance with intermational
standands, and at present is the prindipal auttionity utifized by
subsustace users for the preparation of reports submitted for
approval to the State Reserves Committee of Kazakhstan at
difierent stages of geological exploration.

ShalklyaZinc M.V
Fnnual Report and Accounws 2008

BAURZHAN BisEmaavey

Nom-Exeadive Member

Mr. Bisembayev is an experienced manager; from 1991 to 2000
he served 2 a Financial Director and member of the Board of
LLP *BATA". Since 1999 he hias heid the pasition of First Vice
President of 5C “Atyrau refinery plant®, then Chaimnan of the
Boa:d.Mr.BisembayevmvedinmeNaﬁummiCompaw
*KazahOF" a5 3 Director of Department Management of ANPZ
and as an adviser to the President of the company and gained
vakiatie experience in the development of natural resources.
Since 2004 he has been a member of the 8oard of SC*KOR",
The Company benefits from Mr. Bisembayev's expesiencein the
natural resources development sector of Kazakistan, and his
finandial experience. Mz Bisernbayey holds o othes non-
execttive board pasition. Mr. Bsembayev does not hold apy
share capitalin the Company, and & independent, as defined in
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

TALGAT ALIMKHANGY

Non-Executive Member

Mr. Taigat Almkhanov has extensive sining expesience, At
present, he hoids the position of General Dicector of LLP *Zhety
Kazyna". Before that, Mr, Alimhanov held sevesal similar positions
at other companies. He served s President of 1SC “Syrymbet” lor
three years. from 2002 to 2005, Mr, Aimhanov held the position
of General Director of LLP "Comporation KBK™. At present he is
also @ Member of the Supervisory 8oand of LLP "Zhety Kazyna”,
andhe has managed the process of development of nicked
deposits. The Company benefits from Mr, Afmhanov's
experience inmanaging the process of developing mining
deposits, and his management expesience. Mr, Almhanov holds
noother nan-executive board position. Mr. AEmhanov does not
hold amry share capital in the Company, and is independent, 28
defined in the Dutch Corparate Goverance Code.

Note:
The Boart had et thece tmes unce s
rocehe 3 project status ropart nchading 9

9 for i the Company and s subdiary il &3
prnopal usness mnonthly. The Directons ane given a vl Board pack with agendta
acvance ol exch of the Duecton.

D08 Fach O

/
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BoARD COMMITTEES

The Board af Directors has establshed an Audit Committee,
Remuneration and Nominations Committes, and an
Exeautive Committee,

Audit Committee

s dutles include a ceview of ShalliyeZine Atnual Report and hatf
yearly reports, the role, scope and performance of the intemal
cuntrol systerms of the Company and the extemnal auditors

and the independence and abjectivity of the external auditoes,
MMWMWWMM&W
compliance with legal requirements, accounting standands and
the Listing Rules, enstring that an effective system of finandal
controls s maintained.

The GO attends the meetings by imvitation, During 2008, the
Audit Committee met twice.

Remwneration and Nomination Committee
mmmmwmmkumm
making recommendations to the Board af Directors on the
poﬁcymmemmﬂnndwiornmagememmreviamg
the performance of Exeantive Directors and senlor
management, it also considers the compasition of the Board of
Directors and appoinnents of Directors, and makes proposals
and recommendations to the Board of Directors and the
sharehalders’ meeting on issues related to the composition and
nomination of the Board of Directors.

The CEQ attends the meetings by invitation. During 2008, the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee met once.

Exacutive Committee
mem!edmxaemﬁuemmmekmnmagethe
conduct of mining and processing operations. Each member of
the Executive Cammittee has his of her own area of
responsibiity and has the dity to develop the opesationsin
accordance with the targets set by the Board of Directors,

The Executive Committee meets 1-3 times a month.

Ouring 2008 the Executive Committee consisted of
the following:

Marat Sarkytbayev
Executive Director and GEO

Ramilya

Executive Drector

Henkvan \ijlen

Executive Diractor and Company’s Secretary

Finally, we would Bee to exqress our sincere thanks to the

management and all the Company’s empioyees for their
efforts in 2008.

The Unitary Board
290ctober 2009

ShalktyaZine N.V.
Andwal Repost 3ng Accounts 2008
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

itis our pleasure to present the 2008 consolidated linancial
mﬁm&uamwwwr:
Boand {the linancial statemants”), The finandl statements were
prepared in acoordanas with intemational Financial Repaiting
Standards ("JFRS") as adopted by the EL.

The financial statements have been audited by the external
auditors, Emsi8Young BV., and discussed with them on the basis
of thelr report, The independent audiors’ report & indiuded on
Page 24. The independent audkors’ report & madified by the
emphasis of matter paragraph that highlights the existence of a
material uncertainty refating to the events and conditions that
cast significant doubts on the Company's ability to continye as
againg concem. We approved the finandal statements at our
meeting on 29 October 2009 and recommend that you
approve them aswell.

We concur with the proposal that there be no distributions of
eamings with respect to the aurrent reporting period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

17 July 2008 ShalkiyaZinc NV, implemented a one tier board
structure,

The estabishment of the Unitary Baard, which replaced its
htmumﬂammgmmmmiﬁngawpmw
Board and 3 Management Board, was recommended in a
Corporate Govemance Review by PricewaterhouseCoopers and
approved by the Annual General Meeting of ShalkiyaZinc N.V. on
18 June 2008.

Implementation of the ane tet board structure and
appointment of the Unitary Board members became
etfective upon execution of the notarial deed of amendment
of the Company's Artides of Assodiation.

According to the Comparny's Articles of Assodation,
ShalidyaZinc's Board of Directors already consists of one of mare
Executive Directors and Non-Exequtive Directors, only natural
persons can be Non-Exequtive Dirertors and the Board
determines the number of Executive Directors and the numbes
of Non-Executive Directors.

To ensure the correct batance between Executive, Non-
Executive and Independent Members of the Unitary Board, the
Board ts considesing appointing a further Non-Exeautive
Mernbetomelllhyaoard.demiso!mmwmumbrmd
in due course.
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UNITARY BOARD OF

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The DuTCH Cape

The Dutch Corporate Governance Code (the *Dulch Code”)
drawn up by the Tabaksbiat Commission was pubfshed on

9 December 2003 and became effectivean 1 Jamary 2004,
The Gode consists ol 21 principles and 113 best practice
provisions, The Dutch Code appies to it companies whase
registered offices are located in the Nethestands and whose
shanes or deposiary receipts are officially &sted on 3 government
recognized stock exchange (including foreign stack exchanges,
such a8 the Landon Stack Exchange). The Company generally
subscribes to the prindples promulgated by the Outch Code and
it s the intention of the Supervisary Board toimplement the
Dutch Code best practice provisions to the greatest possbie
extentin as short a time as possible.

The Company started to implement some of the principies and
provisions of the Dutch Code dusing 2007 and continues to take
the further staps it considers necessary to implement the Dutch
Code. Tothis end the Company is curently engaged in a
complete review of its current Corporate Governance status and
will seek appraval of the General Meeting for fusther
implementation as appropriate. The Company does nat comply
with the fallowing best practice nles in respect of the Dutch
Compasate Governance Code:

Number ii.1.6 The Campany cumently does not have 3
whistleblowers poicy, but is developing such 3 poicy and
expects to have it adopted by the end of 2009,

Number .2 The Company aurently does not have a
remuneration policy, but this is scheduled to be adopted at the
2009 AGM.

Number 2.1 There was an option scheme in place for the
Chairman of the Supesvisory Board, We belleved It was in the
best intesest of the Company to incentivize our Chainman of the
Supesvisary Board a5 he has undertaken an extended rale
oultside of his normal non-executive duties and was heavily
involved in guiding the strategy and future development of the
Companyinits formative years. Such option schemes are
relatively commion in cthes jurisdictions, commensurate with the
level of commitment undertaken by the individual, in this case,
the option scheme was approved by the shareholders prior to
the IPO and disdiosed in the prospectess & being nct in
complance with the Dutch Corparate Govemance Code. In
2008. upon theresignation of the Chaicnan of the Supervisory
Board the option scheme was cancelied,

ShalidysZing MLV,
Anrual Report and Accounts 2008
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

The following statement is made with a view to the respective
responsibiiities of management In relation to the consolidated
financial staternents of ShatkdyaZinc NV. and &s subsidiary {the
“Group’}

Management s responsible forthe preparation of the
consolidatad financial staterments that present fairy the financial
pasition of the Group a5 2t 31 Decamber 2008 and the results of
its aperations, cash flaws and changes in sharehokders' aquity for
the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("FRS”) as adopted by the EU.

Tn preparing the consolidated Gnancial statements, management

s responsible for:

> seiacting sultable accounting principles and applying them
consistently;

> maﬁng]udéemenumdatinatumanmmueam

prudent;

> statingwhether IFRS have been followed, subject to any
matestal departures diciosed and explained in the
consoldated finandal statements; and

> preparing the consolidated finandal statements on agoing
cancem bask, unless it s inappropsiate to presume that the
Geroup will continue tn business for the foreseeable future.

Management i ako responsible fors

> designing, implermenting and wmaintaining an effective and
sound system of intemal contrals, throughout the Grougy,

> maintaining proper acoounting records that disclose, with
rexsonable aocuracy at amy time, the financial position of the
Group, and which enable them tn ensure that the consolidated
financial statemnents of the Group comply with [FS;

> maintaining statutory accounting recards in compliance with
legisiation and accounting standards of the Republic of
Kazakhstar;

> {aking such steps as are reasonably avaisble to them to
safequard the assets of the Group; and

> detecting and preventing fraud and othes irequiarities.

To the best of our knowledge:

> the consaidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the assets, Eabilitles, financial posttion and profit or
loss of the Group and the undertakings included in the
conscldation;

> theDirectors’report gives a true and fair view of the stuation at
the balanee sheet date, the development of the business during
the financial yeer of the Group and of the subsidiary whose
information s inckided in the consoltated finandal statements
and the expacted development of business, with spedial
attention being devoted, inzsmuxh 23 no weighty interests
precude ths, to theiwestments and the aonditions on which
the developiment of tumover and of profitabiity depend.

The tonsolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2008 were approved by management and
3uthorized for bsue on 29 October 2009,

General Dieactor

-~

A

ShalktyaZine N.V.
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RISKS AND

UNCERTAINTIES

Risks INHERENT IN MiNyNG OPERATIONS

ShalkiyaZing's peimary business activity bwolves the mining of
zinc and lead. The mining business is subject to sisks and hazards
marty o which are outside ShilkiyaZinc's control.

These risks include, among athers, enviconmental hazards
(induding discharge of metals, polutants ar hazardous
dwmwmmmmmm

inclerment weatiter conditions. These ocourrences could result in
damage to, o7 destruction of, mineral properties or production
faciities, pessonal injuty or death, environmental damage,
reduced production and delays in mining, asset wilte-dawns,
monetary losses and possible legal Eabiity. Although precautions
to minimise the risks have and will continue to be taken, even 3
cambination of careful evaluation, experience and inowledge
may nok eiminate 3l risks and hazands.

Althaugh StalkiyazZine maintains insurance in an amourt that
considers to be adequate, Eabiities might exceed palicy Gmits, in
whtich event ShalkiyaZine could Inour significant costs that could
have a material adverse effect on the business, financial
condition ar the results of operations at the ShakiyaZinc.
Insurance fully covering many environmental risks

potential Babifity for pofution or other hazards as aresult of
disposal of waste products ocourring from explaration and
production) is not generally avalable bo ShalkiyaZing or to othex
companies in the mining industry,

VorATnsty IN COMMODITY PRICES

ShalkiyaZinc's budget and any future revenue will depend an the
market price for commocdities, especially for zinc and lead,

A substantial decine in prices might threaten the economic
viabiiky of the SteakiyaZing Mine of the beneft of developing the
deposits at this stage. Themarket price for commodities has
historically been subject to wide fluctuations and is atfected by
numerous factors beyond ShalkiyaZine's control, inchsding
intemational ecanomic and pokitical concitions, fevels of supply
and demand, the avaitability and costs of substitutes. inventocy
tevels maintained by producers and others, and actions of
paticipants in the commodities markels.

KAZAKHSTAN RELAYED Risks

The Company’s aperations are subject to extensive govenment
faws and reguiations conceming mine safety, subsod and land use
and environmental protection in Kazakhstan, The Company intus
substantial capital and opesating costs to comply with increasingly
camplex knws and requiations coveting its operations.

Reguiation in Kazakhstan governing discharje of materialsinto
the envirorsmient is Beely to evolve in 3 manner vaich wil require
stricter standands of compfiance. Non-compliance with
environmental reguiations or the Incregsing cost of compliance
with such reguiations could have a matestal adverse effect on
the Company’s business, operating results and financial
ansxiition. The Company tmrsst comply with the Subsall Use
Cantracts and is also required to maintain iquidation fumds to be
used upon the cessation of mining operations for envicaimental
rehabilitation of tands covered by such contracts.

ShalklyaZing V.
Annual Report and Accounts 2008

The Kazakh tax system imposes substantial burdens an the
Company, The Company s subject to 2 broad range of taxes
imposed at federal, regianal and local leve’s, Laws refatad ta
these tms have been In force for a relatively short period in
compatison to tax lws in mare developed mazket economics
and few precedents with regand to the interpretation of these
taws have been establfished. No assurnoes can be made that
any nev tax kws introduced by the Government will not
result in the Company having Lo pay significantly higher
taxes, which could have a materially adverse effect on the
Company’s business,

SoaaL RISKS AND BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The Company's assets are (ocated in Kazakhstan, a country which
almstoestabiishamore business emvironment.
These are stil substantial dfifferences between it and the West.
Some ¢f these differences and the ongoing process could
advessely affect the Comprany and its operations o disaupt nonmal
business activity, Kazakhstan is still developing the legal tramewark
required by alully developed market econony.

Failure to abtain approvals from Kazakh authorities could cause
the Company’s business to suffer.

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL SYSTEMS

Shalisyazing has a fimited operating history and has only had
operations since the beginning of 2004. As a reult, it is subject
torisks, expenses and uncertainties associated with
implementing its business plan that are not typically
encountered in more mature companies. Any fature to take
necessary actions and arry weaknesses in the operational and
financial systems or rarageriaj controk and procedures of the
ShalkdyaZine may impact ShafkiyaZinc's ability to implement its
business plan and may have a matesial adverse elfect on the
business, financial condition ar resuks of operations of the
ShalldyaZine.

CONTROL STAYEMENT

We befieve that our intemna! sisk management and control
systems are xiequate in relation, to the size of the Group's
tassiness, and effective. We delegated authority to the Audit
Committee to assist us in futfiling our responsibiities in relation
to intemal control and financial reporting.

Thete have been no significant changes in the intemat control
System during 2008.

FinaNcIAL Risxs

We confirm that:

> oursiskmanagement and control systems provide
reasonable assusance that the finandal reparting contains no
material misstatements;

> the riskmanagement and contro) systems operated
effectively in the year undes review; and

> these are noindications that the risk managemesd and
control systemns will not operate effectively in the current
financial year.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO

SHALKIVAZING'S BUSINESS

Aninvestimet in the Company’s GDRs invoives 3 high degree of
w5k, You shovkd carehully consider the folkmwing risks, in addition
to the section entétied “Risk Factors™ in the Company’s
Prospectus in relation to its ofter of GDRs., Additional risks and
umcertainties that the Campany of management may not be
Jware of, ar may befieve are immaterial, coukd also adversely
affect the Company's business, operating results and financial
oonditions.

investass shouid pay particular attention to the fact that the
majarity of the Company’s assets are focated in Kazakhstan,
which has 3 legal and reguiatory regime that differs in some
respects from legal and regulatory regimes in other countries.

Companies engaged in Znc and lead mining activities face
cartain risks related to their operations (inchuding their
exploration and development activities), which may have an
adverse effect an their business, opevating results and finandal
condition. As 90% of the Company’s revenue is derived from the
sale of zinc concentrate, the price of 2inc has a significant impact
on the Company’s operating results. The prices of both zinc and
fead may vary significantly, due to a number of factors outside
the Company’s control.

The Company fas appointed a Risk Management Committee
reporting directly to the Board of Directors. This Risk
strategies to minimize the impact of sisks that can be controlled
by the Company.

COING CONCERN

The Company’s Rture operations are dependent on the
successhul implementation of management's plan for
campletion of the construction of the New Processing Plant
which requires linancing of approximately USD 50 mifion.

The finandng of USD 49 millon is akso required to repay the
Company’s borrowings and to find operating costs. The
Company’s major sharehalders, as represented by the Kazakh
individuaks, and management plan to attract financing through a
private placerment of additionzl Company's siares. Management
& cunrently in negotiations with a potential investor about the
canditions of the transaction. Ako, management is in
negotiations with the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources
! the Repubik of Kazakhstan (the "MEMR™) regarding the
MEMR's walver of the priority right on acquisition of the
Company's shares, Matagement befieves that probabiity of the
tramsaction and obtaining the waiver from the MEMR and raising
additional capital to fund the construction and repayment of the
Company's bormowings & highly prababie.

Furthesmere, the Company's future production qrowth is
dependent, inter akia, upon its sucoess in ¢eveloping, mining and
processing its reserves. AR mining operations are chasacterized
by a high degree of urrcertainty, and therefore risk, associated
with operating parameters and costs resulting from the scaling
up of extraction methods tested in pliot conditions.

ShalkiyaZine MLV,
Annual Report and Accounts 2008
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tothe Unitary Board and shareholders of ShalkiyaZine NV,

Repart on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financlat statements 2008 of
ShalkiyaZine NV., Rotterdam as included on the pages 25 up to
and inctuding 60 of this Annual Report. The financial statements
consist of the consolidated financial statements and the Company
financial statemments. The consolidated financial statements
comprise the consofidated bafance sheet as at 31 December
2008, the prafit and loss account, statement of changes in equity
and cash flaw statemens for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting palicies and other expianatory notes. The
Company financial statements camprise the Company balance
sheet as at 31 December 2008, the Company profit and loss
account for the year then ended and the notes.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible far the preparation and (3ir
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reperting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil
Code, and for the preparation of the Management Board report in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherfands Civil Cade.
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal cantrol refevant to the preparation and fair
presentatian of the financial statements that are free from
materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting palicies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Audlitor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements based on aur audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Dutch law. This law requires that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and pesfarm the audit to abtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
{rom material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audt evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the finandial statements, whether due to fraud ar estos. in making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements kn order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the puspose of
expressing an opinian on the effectiveness of the entity’s Intemal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appeopriateness of
accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia! statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtalned is suffictent
and appropfiate to provide a basis for our audit apinion,

ShalklyaZine N.V.
Annual Report and Accounts 2008
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Opinion with Respect to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

In our apinion, the cansolidated financial statements give a true
and fals view of the finandal position of ShalkiyaZinc N.V. as at

31 December 2008, and of its result and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with intesnatianal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Eurapean Union and with Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Netherlands Gil Code.

Opinion with Respect to the Company

Financlal Statements

In our opinian, the Company financial statements give a trye
and falr view of the finandial positian of ShalkiyaZinc NV, as at
31 December 2008, and of its resuit for the year then ended in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

Emphasls of Matter

Without qualifying our opinian, we draw attention to note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements which Indicates that the
Group incurred a net loss of LISD 42,831 thausand during the year
ended 31 December 2008 and, as of that date, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by USD 6,434
thousand, which amangst others has been caussed by a significant
deciine in the world market prices for the Group's products. As a
result the Group suspended its production and the construction of
a new ore processing plant.

These conditlons, along with other matters as set forth in note 2,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast a
significant doubt about the Group's abfiity to continue as a going
concern. Management has taken steps to attract financing
through 3 private placement of shares, however it is still not
certaln whether this private placement will be realized, Therefore,
there continues to be material uncertainty about the ability

of the Graup to raise the required financing ta continue as a
going concern.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Pursuant to the legal requrement under 2:393 sub 5 part e of the
Nethertands Civil Code, we report that the majority of information
required undes 2:397 sub S refating to the corporate governance
code and the takeover directive have been omitted, except for
the in control statement. .

Pursuant to the legal requirement under 2:393 sub S part f of the
Netherfands Clvil Cade, we report, to the extent of our
competence, that the Management Board report is consistent
with the linancial statements as required by 2:391 sub 4 of the
Netherlands Gvi Code,

2walle, 29 Octaber 2009
Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by D.L. Graot Zwaaftink




SHALKIYAZINC N.V.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2008

in thausangs of USD (except as indicated tn per share amounts)

2007
(retated ~ 0
Notes 2002 notr 5}
Continuing aperations
Reverue 6 11,137 30,300
Cost of sales ? {21,206) (21.438)
Gross (loss)fprofit (10,069} 8.862
General and administsative expenses 9 {16,079) (7423}
Distribution costs 10 {598) (769)
Impairment loss 16 {16,045) -
Operating (loss)fprofit {42,79%) 670
Finance income 14 58 441
Finance costs 14 {4.565) (563)
Foseign exchange gainj{loss), net 261 (1.048)
Other expenses {128) (102)
Loss before tax (47,165) (602)
Income tax benefitjjexpense) 15 4,334 (2.990)
Lass for the peried from continulng operations {42,831} (3.592)
Discontinued operation
Profit after tax for the period from a discuntinued cperation 16 - 100
Loss for the period (42,331) {3.492)
Basic and diluted koss per share, US cents 26 (7158.07) {61.81)
8asic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations, US cents 26 (758.07) {61.81)

The nates on pages 29 to 55 form an integsat part of Lhese consolidated financial statements.

Marat Sarkytbayav Rufina Khafizova Muchabbat Baltursynova
General Director Deputy Finance Directar Financial Accounting Manager
2 5 ShalkiyaZine N.V.

Anvwial Report and Actounts 2008
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2008

in thousands of USD
31 December
2007
31 Decamber  (restated - sec
2008 note 5}
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plent and equipment 17 40,510 53.740
Exploration costs 18 - 1494
Long-termn partion of VAT receivable 20 3,705 4459
Prepayments for non-current assets il 5.765 3940
Restricted cash deposit 25 147 72
Deferred tax asset 15 6,733 2400
56,860 66,106
Current assets
VAT receivable 20 2,942 3936
Inventories 2 5,551 2180
Trade and other receivables 23 n 3,287
Prepayments 21 353 918
Available-lor-sale investments 24 - 1773
Cash and cash equivalents 25 502 1518
9,679 18,612
Total assets 66,539 84,718
Equity and [fabilities
Equity
Issued capital 256 33 83
Share premium 62,164 61,355
Fareign cumrency trangtation reserve 26 3,091 3450
Net unreafized loss reserve 26 - (347
Equity settied employee benefits reserve 27 - 165
Accumulated deficit (45,329) {2.498)
20,009 62,208
Non-current liabllities
Borrowings 28 22,633 4210
Provision for future site restoration 29 3,697 2,241
Oue to the Republic of Xazakhstan 30 2,200 1,906
Lang-term trade payables 31 1,887 2770
30,417 naz7
Current liabilitles
Cutrent partion of borrowings 28 7.866 6.274
Trade and other payables N 7,096 4,567
Taxes payable other than incame tax 496 216
Advances received 655 326
16,113 7,383
Total equity and liabilities 66,539 84,718

The notes on pages 29 to 535 lorm an integeal pact of these consolidated finandial statements.

-

- P
Marat Sarkytbayev Rufina Khafizova
General Director Deputy Finance Directar
2 6 ShalkiyaZin NV,

Anrudt Repart and Accounts 2008
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Muchabbat Baitussynova
Financial Accounting Manager
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2008

in thousands of USD

ated = see
Notes 2008 note 5}
Operating activities
Loss before tax from continuing operations (47.165) {602)
Frofit before tax fram discontinued aperations - 143
47,165 4
Adjustments (or: ( ) s
impairment of praperty, plant and equipment and exploration casts 17,18 16,045 -
Impaimment of avaiable-far-sale investments 24 2,1 -
Provision for ing inventories 22 273 296
Provision for doubtful accounts and advances paid 2123 1.002 262
impainment of VAT receivable 20 4,311 -
Oepreciation 17 3647 2908
Equity settlement 27 {165} 10
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 250 298
Gain on disposal of subsidiary - (257}
Fingnce income (58) (a41)
Flnance costs 4,565 563
Forelgn exchange {gain)jloss (269) 319
Qperating {toss)fgain before working capital changes {15,453} 3,580
Decreasef{increase) in trade and other recelvables 2,499 (3.17)
Decreasef{increase) in inventories 1,326 (3917
Increase in VAT receivable (2.563) {4.277)
increase in prepayments (45) {3,803)
Increase in trade and other payables 757 9551
Increase in taxes payable 280 14
increase in advances recelved 329 288
Net cash outflow from gperations (12,870 (1.871)
Interest paid 28 (177, (251}
Net cash outflow from operating activities (13,047 (2.122)
Investing activitles
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment (690) (33,813}
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 250
Increase in exploration costs (70) (23)
Consideration from disposal of subsidiary - 215
Interest recetved 120 319
Restricted cash deposit {78) 23)
Prepayments for non-current assets {5,765} (3,941}
Purchase of available-for-sale investments - {1,854)
Net cash outflow from Investing activities {6.481) [38,810)
Financling activities
Proceeds from boriowings 28 18,480 1567
Repaymenk of borrowings 28 {780} {(759)
Reimbursement of IPO issuance costs 26 809 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 18,509 6,768
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalants (1.019)  (34.64)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 25 1,518 34526
Effect of exchange rate changes 3 1156
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the y=ar 502 1518

The notes on pages 29 to 55 form an integral part of these consolldated financial statements.

Marat Sarkytbayev Rufina Khafizova
General Director Deputy Finance Director
2 7 ShalkiyaZine N.V.

AnnLAl Report 3mg ACCounts 2003
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Muchabhbat Baltursynava
Financlal Accounting Manager
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2008

in thousands of USD

Foreign (] ettied Retained
cusrency unrealkded camingsf
Yae Sare temiation lons benelas
— capital premum reserve eserve reverve delct) Totad

At 1 fanuary 2007 73 61,355 (113) - 64 994 62373
Translation difiesences 10 - 3563 - - - 3573
Unvealised loss an available-for-sale investments - - - (347) - - (3479)
Net income and expense for the year recognised

directly in equity 10 - 3563 (347) - - 3,226
Loss for the period {as restated, note 5) - - - - - (3.492) (3.492)
Tolal income and expense lor the year 10 - 3,863 (347} - (3,492} (266)
Share-based payments {note 27) - - - - 101 - 101
At 31 December 2007 {as restated, note 5) 83 61,355 3,450 (347) 165 (2,498) 62,208
Translatlon differences - - {359) - - - (359)
Unreallzed loss on avallable-for-sale

investments {note 24) - - - (29) - - (29)
Net realized losses on available-for-sale

investments (note 24) - - - 376 - - 376
Reimbursement of IPO issuance costs {note 26) - 809 - - - 809
Net income and expense for the year recognised

directly in equity - 309 (359) 347 - - 797
Loss for the period - - - - - 42,831 42,831
Total income and expense for the year - 803 (359) 347 - 42,831 42,034
Derecognition of share-based payments [note 27) - - - - {165) - (165
At 31 December 2008 83 62,164 3,091 - - (45329) 20,009

The notes on pages 29 to S5 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Marat Sarkytbayev Rufina Khatizova
General Director Deputy Finance Director

2 8 ShalklyaZing N.V.

e ~

Muchabbat Baitursynova
Financial Accounting Manager




SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2008

1. Corporate Informatlion

ShalkiyazZinc N.V. {the “Company” or “ShalkiyaZinc NV."), a public kmited lfability company, was incorporated on 6 November 2006 under
the laws of the Netherfands. The address of its segistered office is Martinus Nijhofflaan 2, 2624 ES Deift, the Netherlands.

The Company is the sole shareholder of LLP ShalkiyaZinc Ltd {"LLP ShaikiyaZinc Ltd™ or the “Subsidiary"). The Company and its Subskiiary
together are further referred to as the Group.

The Company becamne listed on 14 December 2006 at the Landan Stock Exchange by lssuing Global Depository Receipts (GDRs).

The ultimate beneficial shareholders of the Campany are as follows;
+ Kazakh individuak:

- Rlfat Rizoyev (49.88%)%

- Assylbek Abuov (11.17%);

- Marat Sarkytbayev and Samat Kazymov (jointly own 13.40%).
» Listed on the London Stock Exchange (25.55%).

The Group's main activities are exploration, extraction and processing of complex lead-zinc are in the Shalklya field, located in the
Zhanakorgan 3rea of the Kyzyl-Orda region of the RepubEc of Kazakhstan. The Subsidiary operates the Shalkiya Mine and the Kentau
concentrator. The subsidiary's activities are regulated In accardance with the contract concluded between the Ministey of Energy and
Mineral Resources of the Repubiic of Kazakhstan and the Subsidiary dated 31 May 2002 fat the extraction of complex ore in the Shalkiya
field from 2002 to 2046 (the ~Shalkiya Subsurface Use Contract™).

In December 2004, the Subsidiary entered into a subsurface use contract with the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources of the
Republic ol Kazakhstan for the exploration and extraction of compiex ore In the Talap field {the “Talap Subsurface Use Contract™).
The term of the Talap Subsutface Use Contract Is 20 years.

The consolldated financial statements were authorised for issue on 29 October 2009 by the Generat Directar, Deputy Finance Disector
and Financial Accounting Manager of the Group.

2. Basis of Preparation

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated finandial statements have been prepared on a histarical cost basls, except as described in the accounting policles
and the notes to these consokdated financial statements.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated finandal statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS™)
s adopted by the EU issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Soard ("ASB").

Operating Environment

The Kazakhstan ecanomy is vulnerable to market downtums and economic siowdowns elsewhere In the world. The ongoing globat
financial crisis has resuited in capital markets instabiiity, significant deterioration of kquidity in the banking sector, and tighter credit
conditions within Kazakhstan. Whie the Kazakhstan Government has introduced a range of stabilization measures aimed at providing
{iquldity and supporting debt refinancing for Kazakhstan banks and companies, there cantinues to be uncertalnty regarding the access
to capital and cost of capital {or the Group and its counterparties, which could atfect the Group's financial position, resuils of operations
and business prospects.

Going Concern

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the realizatlon of assets and the
satisfaction of Habifities in the normal course of business. The Group incurred a net foss of USD 42,831 thousand and USD 3,492 thousand
for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, tespectively. At 31 December 2008, the Group’s current llabifitles exceeded current
assets by USD 6,434 thousand. At 31 December 2008, the Group's accumulated deficit amounted to USD 45,329 thousand {2007: USD
2,488 thousand). The main reason for the net toss is 3 significant dedline in the warld market prices for the Group's products and high
costs ol processing and transportation. As a result the Group suspended its praduction in November 2008. Ako, the Group suspended
construction of a new ore processing plant which started in 2008.

Furthermare, in 2009, the Group s tn default under the BTA 8ank loan contracts which gives BTA Bank the right to require the
accelerated repayment of the borrowings in the amount of USD 30,499 thousand {notes 28 and 37).

The Group’s abllity to continue as a going cancern is dependent on the abllity ta ralse financing:

i} tofinalize the construction of the New Processing Plant; and
i) to repay the Group’s borrowings.

2 9 ShalkiyaZine NV,
Anrudl Repert and Accoumts 2008




SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. Basls of Preparation continued

Per management’s assessment pracessing of the cre on the existing Kentau concentrator {the "ald processing plant”) is economically not
viable due to the significant physical deterioration of the old processing plant, its low productivity, high maintenance and fabor costs,
and its distance from the Shalkiya Mine. These factors led ta the histosically high processing and transportation costs that have not been
recoverable since the significant decrease in zinc market prices resulting from the 2008 global economic crisis, As at 31 December 2008
the Group's capital expenditure refated to the construction of the New Processing Pfant amounted to USD 29,034 thousand, including
USD 5,765 thousand in prepayments. Per management's assessment the Group would need an additional USD 56 million to complete
the construction. The New Pracessing Plant is to be equipped with innovative pracessing technology and equipment. Projected annual
productivity of the New Processing Plant is 2 rillicn tonnes, while the actua) productivity of the oid pracessing plant was 440 thousand
tonnes. Also, the New Processing Plant is built at the tocation of the Shalkiya Mine and theretore, unlike the old processing plant would
Aok require transpostation of the are fram the mine to the plant and related transpostation costs. The Group's management projects a
gross margin of 31% at USD 1,903 per torne zinc market price, which means that the operations of the New Processing Plant would be
prolitable even at the cumvent level of zinc market prices. Estimated timing required to compiete the construction is two yaars.

The Group's borrowings amounted to USD 30,499 thausand as at 31 December 2008 with the amount of USD 7,866 thousand
scheduled far payment in 2009.

Thus, there is a material uncertainty related to the ability of the Group to faise requived financing, which may cast signiffcant doubt on

the entity's abifity to continue as a going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realize its 3ssets and discharge its liabilities In the
normal course of business.

Management's Plan

The completion of the construction of the New Processing Plant requires financing of approximately USD 50 million. Also, the financing
is required to repay the Group's barrowings and to fund operating costs {malnly general and administrative expenses), Per management
assessment the total amount of required financing is USD 99 million. The Group's major sharehalders, as represented by the Kazakh
individuals, and management plan to attract financing through a private placement of additional Group's shares.

Management is curently in negatiations with a potential investos about the conditions of the transaction. Also, management is in
negotiations with the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources of the Republic of Kazakhstan (the "MEMR") reqarding the MEMR's waiver
of the priority right on acquisition of the Group®s shares. Management befieves that probability of the transaction and obtaining the
waivef Irom the MEMR and raising additional capital to fund the constructian and repayment of the Graup's borrowings is highly
prabable.

Functlonal and Presentation Currency

The lunctional cusrency of the Company and the Subsidlary Is the Kazakhstan Tenge. Determination of the functional cussency is based
on gperational and financing activities, which are ail denominated in Tenge, except for sate cantracts which are denominated in USD
due to the use of world market prices quoted at the LME. The Tenge is not a fully convertible currency outside of the tesltory of the
Republic of Kazakhstan. The translation of Tenge denominated assets and Gabilities into USD for the purpose of these consolidated
linancial statements daes not indicate that the Group could or willin the future realize or settle in USD the translated values of these
assets and fabiGties,

The Group has chasen to present its cansofidated financlal statements In USO, The Group uses USD for presentation of its financial
statements and their publishing on the intemational markets as the Tenge is not fully convertible and recognizable currency in the
intemational markets. The Graup's revenues are generated in USD as the sales contracts are denominated in USD due to use of world
market prices quoted at the LME. As at the reporting date, the assets and liabfiities of the Group are translated inta the presentation
Currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and its statement of operations is translated at the weighted average
exchange rate for the pertod {unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumutative effect of the rates prevailing an
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are transiated at the rate on the dates of the transactions). The exchange
diflerences arising an the transiation are taken directly to equity.

3. Signiticant Accounting Policles
Changes In Accounting Policy and Disclosure

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except as discussed below.

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC Interpretations as of 1 January 2008, Adoption of these standards
and interpretations did not have any effect an the finandial performance or position of the Graup.

= IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions;
¢+ IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements;
* IFRIC 14 1AS 19 - The limit an a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Raquirements and their nteraction.

e AHNV




SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Significant Accounting Policles continued

The Group has early adopted IAS 23 orrowing Casts (Revised) as of 1 Jamsary 2008, The revised 1AS 23 requires the Group te capitalize
borrowing costs when such caosts refate to a qualifying asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready lor its intended use or sale. Adoption of this standard had no effect on the financial performance and pasition of the
Group as the Group applied the allowed aiternative treatment with the same requirements.

Improvement to (FRSs 2008

in May 2008 the IASB issued Its first omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing inconststencies and
dlarifying wnt?ldsng. There are separate transitional pravisions for each standard. The Group has early adopted the follawing amendments
ta the standards:

« IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Assets and Babilities dassified as held for trading in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recagnition and Measurement are not automatically dlassified as current in the balance sheet. This amendment had no
effect of the financial position of the Group.

* 1AS 16 Property Plant and Equipment: Replace the term *net seffing price™ with “fair value less cost ta sell”. The Group amended its
accounting poficy accardingly, which did not result in any change in the financlal position.

+ 1AS 23 Borrawing Costs: The definition of barrowing casts is revised to consolidate the two types of items that are considered
camponents of *borrowing costs” into ane - the interest expense calculated using effective Interest rate method calculated in
accordance with 1AS 39, The Group has amended its accounting poficy accordingly which did not result in any change [n its financtal
position.

*« 1AS 28 Investment in Assodates: If an associate Is accounted for at fair value in accordance with 1AS 39, only the requisement of 1AS 28
to disclose the nature and extent of any significant restrictions on the ability of the assoclate to transfer funds to the entityin the
tarm of cash or repayment of loans applies. This amendment has no impact on the Group.

+ 1AS 31 Interest in Joint ventures: If a joint venture Is accounted far at fair value, in accordance with [AS 39, anly the requirements of
1A5 31 to disciose the commitments of the venturer and the joink venture, as well as summary financial informatian about the assets,
liabilities, income and expense will apply. This amendment has no impact on the Group,

* 1AS 36 Impaisment of Assets: When discounted cash flows are used to estimate “fair value fess costs to sell” additional disclosure is
required about the discount rate, consistent with disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are used to estimate “vale in
use”, This amendment has no inunediate impact on the financial statements of the Group because the recoverable amount of its cash
generating units is currently estimated using “value in use®

= 1AS 38 Intanglble Assets: Expenditure on advertising and promotional activities is recognized as an expense when the Group has the
right to access the goods or has received the service. This amendment has no impact on the Group.

iFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations Not Yet Effective

The Group has not appied the foliowing IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations that have been issued but are net yet effective:

* IFRS 2 Revised Share-based Payment effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2009;

* [FRS 8 Operating Segwments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009;

+ IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Pragrammes effective for annual periods beginning an ar after 1 july 2008;

* Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Financtal Reporting Standards ang 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements effective for annual perinds beginning on or after 1 July 2008;

J IF'RS 3R Business Combinations and 27R Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements effective for annual periads beginning on or
after 1 July 2009;

= IAS 1 Revised Presentation of Financial Statements effective for annuat perlads beginning on or after 1 January 2009;

* [AS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements = Puttable Financlal instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation effective far annual periods baginning on or after 1 lanuary 2008;

* IAS 39 Finandial Instruments: Recagrition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items effective for annua) perlods beginning an ar

after 1 July 2009;

IFRIC 15 Agreement far the Construction of Real Estate effective for annual pefiods beginning on or after 1 January 2009;

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in 3 Foreign Operation effective far annual periods beginning on ar after 1 October 2008;

IFRIC Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Gwners etfective for annual periods beglnning on of after 1 July 2009;

IFRIC Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers effective for annual perfods beginning an or after 1 July 2009;

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disciosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial instruments effective for annual

periods beginning on or after t January 2008;

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment eifective for anmeal periods beginning on of after 1 January 2010;

* Amendments to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recagnition and Measurement
eflective for annual periads ending an or after 30 June 2009.

¢ & » 4

The Group anticipates that the adaption of these amendments in future periods will have no materfal impact an the financial position of
performance of the Group. The adoption of 1AS 1 Revised Presentation of Financial Statements and [FRS 8 Operating Segments will result
in the changes in the presentation of the financial statements and the new requised disclosures.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Significant Accounting Pollcies continued

Improvement to 1FRSs 2009

{n April 2009, the IASB issued its second omnibus af amendments to its standards. The Group has not yet adopted these amendments
and anticipates that these changes wi have no material effect on the financial statements.

Basls of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary as at 31 December 2008,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, belng the date on which the Group obtains control, and continye to be
cansolidated until the date that such control ceases. The {inandal statements of the Subsidlary are prepared for the same reporting
period as the parent company, using consistent accounting polides.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unreafised gains and lasses resuiting from intra-group transactions are eliminatad
in full,

Propesty. Plant and Equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accurmulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Capitalized costs
include major expendituses for improvements and replacements that extend the useful Gves of the assets or increase thelr reverue
generating capacity. Repairs and maintenance expenditures that do not meet the foregoing criteria far capitalization are charged to the
consolidated statement of operations as incurred.

The decision to develop a mine property within a project area is based on an assessment of the commercial viabiiity of the property. the
availabliity of financing and the existence of markets for the product. Once the decision is made to proceed with the development,
development and other expenditures relating to the project are capltalized and carried at cast with the intention that these will be
depreciated by charges against earnings from future mining operations. Development assets are measured at cost. Upon
commencement of production, exploration and development costs are depreciated over the life of the mine, which is estimated at a
maximum of 25 years.

Depreciation of assets undef construction commences when the assets are avalable for use, Depreciation Is charged so as to write off
the cast of assets, ather than assets under construction and land, over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line
method, on the following basis:

Capitafized mine development costs 25 years
Buildings and constsuctions 10-20 years
Vehicles 7-Qyears
Machinery and equipment {except for fiotation machines) 6~7 years
Other property, plant and equipment 8-10 years

The fiotation machines are depreciated based on the total praduction capacity of these machines using the unit of production method.

Anitem of praperty, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal oF when no future econamic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss ariting an derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carmying amaunt of the asset) is induded In profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

The asset’s resldual values, useful kves and methads of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Exploration Costs

Expenditures refated to the following activities are inittally measured at cost and capitalized as exploratian assets: acquisition of rights to
explove; topographical, genlogical, geochemical and geophysical studies; exploratory drilling; trenching; sampling and activities in
relation to evakiating the technical feasibiiity and commercial viabillty of extracting a mineral resource,

The dedkslon to develop a mine property within a project araa Is based on the exploration and evaluation results, an assessment of
the commercial viabifity of the propesty and the availability of financing. Once a declsion to proceed with the develapment is made,
Capitalized exploration and evahration expenditures relating to the project are transferred to ¢apltat construction in progress as part
af the development costs of the mine property.

Expenditures not included in the inftlal measurernent of exploration assets are: development of a mineral resource once technical
feasibiity and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource have been established and administration and ather genera)
overhead costs. Exploration assets are measured at cost.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. significant Accounting Pollcles continued

impairment of Non-tinancial Assets

The Group assesses assets or groups of assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value af an asset may not be recoverable. Individual assets are grouped for impalsment assessment purposes at the lowest level at which
there are identiflable cash flows that are fargely independent of the cash flows of ather graups of assets. if any such Indication of
impairment exists or when annual impainment testing for an asset group is required, the Company makes an estimate of its recoverable
amount. An asset group's recoverable amount is the higher of its fale value less costs to sefl and its value [n use. Where the canrying
amount of an asset group exceeds its recaverable amaunt, the asset group Is cansidered impaired and Is written down to its recovesable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the asset group and are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects aurrent market assessments of the time vatue of money.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impainment losses may no
fonger exist or may have decreased. If such Indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
toss Is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. if that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal Is recognized in profit or loss,

Alter such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cast and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted-average cost method. Cost
includes all costs incurred in the normal course of business [n bringing each item ta its present location and condition. Net realizable
value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of business less any costs expected to be incurred to complete the sale,

The net cast of production per unit of finished goods Is determined by dividing total production cost, allocated in the ratio of the
contribution of these products to total relative sates value, by the saleable mine output of finished goads.

Work-in-process is valued at the net unit cast of production based an the percentage of completion methad.

Provislons

Site Restoration Provisians

Site restoration provisions are made in respect of the estimated future costs of mine closure and restoration and for environmental
rehabilitation costs {which indude the dismantfing and demolition of infrastructure, removal of residual materials and remediation of
disturbed areas) In the accounting period when the related enviranmental disturbance ocours. The provision Is discounted and the
unwinding of the discount is expensed as Incurred and fecagnized in the statement of operations as a finance cost. A corresponding
amount equivalent ta the provision is also recognized as part af the cost of the related property, plant and equipment, The provisian is
reviewed an an anmval basis for changes in cost estimates, discount rates or operating life.

Other Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it Is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requised to settle the abligation and a refisble estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects a provision te be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbussement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,

It the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the fiabllity. Where
discounting is used, the increase In the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost.

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition
Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as finandial assets at fair value theough profit or loss, loans and receivables,

held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale finandial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, theyare
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through pralit or loss, directly attsibutabie transaction costs.

The Group determéines the classification of its financial assets on Initial recogaition.
All requiar way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date, which is the date that the invastment is

delivered to or by the Group. Regular way purchases o sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or canvention i the marketplace.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Significant Accouating Policlies continued

Held-to-matwrity investments

Nan-derivative finandial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, After Initial measurement held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest methad. Gains and lpsses are recagnised In the consofidated statement of operatians when
the investments are derecngnised or Impaired, as well as through the amastization process.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale linancial assets are those non-derivative financlal assets that are designated as available-fos-sale or are not classified as
held to maturity, leans and receivables and at fais value through prafit and loss. After initlal measurement, available-forsale financial
assels are measured at fair value with uncealised gains or losses recognised directly in equity unth the investment is derecognised or
determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recarded In equity s recognised in the statement of
operations.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detesminable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective Interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consotidated statement of operations when the loans and receivables are derecagnised or impatred, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Amortized Cost of Financial lnstruments

Asortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance tor impaikment and principal repayment or
reduction. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and inchedes transaction costs and fees that are an
integratl part of the effective interest rate.

impalrment of Financlal Assets
The Group assesses 3t each balance sheet date whether a financlal asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

if there is objective evidence that an impairment foss on assets carrled at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measurad as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flaws {excluding future
expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the linancial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
intevest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced thraugh use of an atlowance account. The
amount of the lass is recagnised in the statement of aperations.

iL. in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurving after the impairment was recognised, the previousty recognised impairment loss is reversed, ta the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recogrised in
the statement of operations.

In relation (o trade receivables, a provisian for impairment is made when there is objective evidence {such as the probabitity of
insolvency or significant financial difficuitfes of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of the invaice. The catrying amount of the receivable Is reduced tivough use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncallectible or the period for aliowed claims has explred.

Avallable-for-sale Financial Investments .

if an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost {net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair vahse, less any impairment loss previously recognised In the statement of operations, is transferred from
equity to the statement of operations. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in the
statement of operations, Reversak of impairment losses on debt Instruments are reversed theough the statement of operations, if the
increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring aiter the impaisment loss was recagnised in the
statement of operations.

Financlal Liabilities
Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings
All foans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value and disectly attributable transaction costs.

Atter initial recognition, interest beasing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
methad.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of operations when the [labilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Significant Accounting Polictes continued

Trade and Other Payables

Liabifities fos trade and ather amounts payable are initially recognized at fais valve of the consideration to be paid in luture for goods
and sesvices received, whether or not billed to the Group. Trade and other amounts payable are subsequently measured at amortized
cast using the etfective interest method.

Cue to the Repubtic of Kazakhstan

Liabilitles for due to the Republic of Kazakhstan are Initially recagnized at fair value of the amounts to be paid in future for historical
€osts under the subsofl use contracts. These historical costs are related to the costs incusred by the Republic af Kazakhstan in
connection with exploration and evaluation of activities in the mines. These llabilities are subsequently measused at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

Derivative Financlal Instruments

Derivatives are initiafly recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to theis
fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain of loss is recognized in profit of toss immediately unless the desivative is
designated and effective a5 a hedging instrument. Derivative assets and fiabilties are presented as non-current as they are not expected
to be realized or settled within 12 manths,

Deracognition of Financial Assets and Liabllities

Financial Assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when;

* therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

* the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an cbiigation to pay them in tuil without material
delay to a third party under 3 “pass through” arrangement; of

¢ the Group has transferred its fights to recelve cash flows from the asset and either () has transferred substantially all the sisks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt the risks and rewards of the asset, but has teansferred
contsal of the asset.

When the Graup has transterred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor fetained substantiafly alt
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recagnised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
invalvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee aver the transferred asset is measured at the lower
ol the original camrying amount af the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written andjor purchased option {including a cash settled option or similar provision)
on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing invalvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Grotip may
repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option {including 3 cash settied option or similas provision) an an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lowes of the fair vakie of the transferred asset and the
option exercise psice.

Financial Liabilities
A financial Fabllity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially dilferent terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as a derecognitian of the osiginal liabsiiity and the
fecognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised In the statement of operations.

Offsatting of FInancial Instruments

Financlai assets and linancial abiiities are anly offset and reported at the net amoun in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to ofiset the recagnised amounts and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
andg settie the fabifity simultanaously.

Fair value of Financtal Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in arganized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted
market bid prices at the close of business an the balance sheet date. Far financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value
Is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques inchude using recent amm’s tength market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same: discounted cash flow analysis or athers valuation models.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Significant Accounting Pelicles continued

Revenue

Revenue is recognized when significant risks and rewards associated with the ownership of goods, are passed o the customers, and It is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction wil flow o the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
teliably. Revenue Is measused at the falr value of the consideration received of recelvable and represents amaunts receivable, net of
discaunts and Value Added Tax {*VAT").

Value Added Tax (VAT)
The tax authorities permit the settiement of VAT on sales and purchases on 2 net basis, VAT recelvable represents VAT on domestic
purchases net of VAT on domestic sales. Expart sales are zero rated.

Share-based Paymeants

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the falr value of the equity
instrument at the grant date. Falr value is measured by use of 3 binomial modet. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, excrcise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

Equity-settied share-based payment transactions with other parties are measured at the fair value of the goods and services received,
except where the {aif valie cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fais value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the caunterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability equal to the partion of the goods ar services received is initially recognized at fair
value and remeasured at each balance sheet date.

Taxatlon

Taxes on income are computed in accardance with the faws of the Republic of Kazakhstan and the Netherlands., Deferred taxes are
pravided using the kability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for Binancial reparting pusposes. Defersed income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized of the Rabibity is settled, based an the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax liabikities are provided for in full. Deferred tax assets are recorded to the
extent that there is a reasonable expectation that these assets will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and fiabilities are offset when:

» the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts of current tax assets and current tax llabiiities;

+ the Group has an Intention ta settie on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly; and

* the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes lavied by the same taxation authority in each future
peried in which significant amounts of deferred tax Babliitles and assets are expacted to be settled or recovered.

Contingencles
Contingent iabilities ase not recognized in the consolidated financial statements undess It is probable that an cutflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made, A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated flnanciat
information but disclosed when an inflow of econamic benetits is psobable.

Fareign Currency Transiation

Transactions in currencles other than Tenge are indtially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated In such cusrencies are transiated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Al
translation ditferences are Included in the consalidated statemant of operations fgr the period.

Borrowling Costs

Borrowing costs disectly attributahle to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantfal period of time to get ready for their intended use os sale, are added to the cost of those assets, untll such time as the
3ssets are substantially ceady far their intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit of loss in the period In which they areincurred.

Employee Benefit Ohligaticns

The Group does not have any pension aifangements other than the state pension system of the Republic of Xazakhstan, which requires

contributions by employees calculated as a percentage of current gross salary payments. Such contributions form part of sataries and are
expensed in the consolidated statement of apecations.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

4. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requices management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and abiiities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitles, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainly about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or llabifity affected in the future.

Useful Economic Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment - The Group's mining and non-mining property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on the unit of production method or straight-line basis over their usetul econamic lives of lite of mine whichever is shorter,
The unit of production method is applied to the flotation machines based on their estimated production capacity of 72 milion tonnes
over the useful ife, Production capacity of the fiotation machines Is estimated by the reference to the histarica) performance and
manufacturer specifications. Management pesiodically reviews the appropriateness of the useful economic fives of the assets. The review

is based on the current condition of the assets and the estimated period during which they will continue to bring economic benefit to
the Group.

Pravision for Mine Abandonment and Site Restaratian ~ The Group's mining activities are subject to various taws and regulations
govemning the protection of the enviranment. The Group estimates the pravision for mine abandonment and site restaration abligations
based on management's understanding of the current legal requirements in various jurisdictions, tesms of the license agreements and
internally generated engineering estimates. Pravision is made, based on net present values, for mine abandanment and site restoration
costs as soon as the obfigation arises. Actual costs incurred in future periods could differ materially from the amounts provided.
Addittonally, futyre changes to enviconmental laws and regulations, life of mine estimates and discount rates could affect the canying
amount of this provision,

Impaisment ot Assets - note 19 autlines the significant assumptians made n performing impairment testing of non-current assets.
Changes in these assumptions may alter the results of impairment testing, impairment charges recorded in the statement of operations
and the resulting carrying values af assets. .

Allowances ~ The Group makes allowances for doubtful accounts receivable. Significant judgement s used to estimate doubtful
accounts. In estimating doubttul accounts historical and anticipated customer performance are considered. Changes in the economy,
industry, of specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the allowanee for doubtful accounts recorded in the financial
statements. Details are contained in note 23.

Deferred Tax Assets - Deferred tax assets are recognized for ali deductable temporary differences and carry farward of unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wil be available against which the deductable temporary diffesences and carry
forward of unused tax losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is requised to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategles. Details are contained in note 15.

Taxation - in assessing tax and legal risks, management considers the known areas of tax or legal positians which the Group would not
appeal or does not believe it could successfully appeal as probable obligations, if assessed by tax or lega! autharities. Such determinations
inherently involve significant judgement and are subject to change as a resuit of changes In tax laws and regulations, the determination of
expected outcomes from pending tax os legal proceedings and the cutcome of ongoing compliance audits by tax autharities.

Cantingencies - By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or mare future event occurs of falls to occur.
The assessment of such contingencies inherently invalves the exercise of significant judgement and estimates of the autcome
of future events.

Fair Value of Derivative ~ The fair value of derivative ls determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select
a variety of methods and make assumptians that are mainly based on masket conditions at each balance sheet date. The Group uses
discounted cash flow analysis {or valuation of derivatives that are not traded In active markets,

5. Restatement

In the course of the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group identified a prior period
error. As 3 resuit of capitalizing certain general and administrative expenses, construction in pragress was overstated by USD 590
thousand and defesred tax asset and accumuilated deficit wese undesstated by USD 123 thousand and USD 467 thousand, respectively,
at 31 December 2007. This efror was corrected by restating the comparative information as at and for the year ended 31 December
2007. As a result of carrection of this error general and administrative expenses increased by USD 590 thousand, Income tax expense
decreased by USD 123 thousand and net loss for the period increased by USD 467 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2007.

3 7 shalkiyaZine NV,
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

5. Restatement cotinued
In addition 2007 fimancial statements have been restated fo the effect of the following reclassifications:

tn thoesands o USD Armcunt
Consolldated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007

Redassification of prepayments to prepayments fof long-term assets 3440
Off-set of trade 2nd other payables by prepayments for long-tesm assets 7,286
Redassification of gther accounts receivable to trade and othes recelvables 3%
Redlassification of 2ccrued fees to trade and other payables 185
Redassification of other current fabilities to trade and other payables 6,336
Reclassitication of construction matesials from inventories to property, plant and equipment 1115
Off-set of restricted cash by long-term borrowings* 14,748
Redassification of non-current partion of trade payables to long-term trade payables 3734
Redlassification of net unrealized loss reserve from legal reserves 347
Offset of long-term trade payables with construction in progress 964

"Aap tly rep a0t VX 2007 the Company recogni. f restricted cash ard borowings in the amount of USD 14,748 in selation to the irrevocable tetter of credit
mueab,mm&wunmpamsmmmncmaumumwmmummmamwmlAs19 g aitena and
<uwmmmuanmmmm:mmmmmm

The 2007 consalidated cash flow statement has been restated for the effect of the exchision of foreign exchange ditferences of
USD 3,384 thousand from the financing activities.

None of the above reclassifications impacted net loss or equity.

6. Revenue
tn thexssands of USD 2008 2007
Sales of zinc concentrate 9,243 27876
Sales of lead concentrate 1,894 2424
Sales of cyushed stones - 659
11,137 30.959
Attributable to:
Continued operations 11,137 30,300
Discontinued operations - 659

1137 30,959

7. Cost of Sales

tn thousands of YSO 2008 2007
On-mine and processing costs {note 8) 13,092 15,622
Ore transportation expenses 4,036 4,268
Other expenses 1172 586
Operating cost before depreciation 18,300 20476
Depredation 2,840 2627
Cost of production 21,140 23,103
Change in finished goods and work-in-progress 66 {1,214}
Cost of sales 21,206 21,889
Attributable to:

Continued operations 21,206 21438

Discontinued operations - 451

21,206 21,889
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

8. On-mine and Processing Costs

n thousands o USD 2008 2007
Consumables and spare parts 5.810 6,866
Labour 3,066 3926
Power and other wtility costs 2,751 3450
Maintenance of property, plant and equipment 575 381
Taxes othes than incamne tax 390 485
Thivd party services 500 S14
13,092 15,622
9. General and Administrative Expenses
2007
{restated -
in thaunands o USD 2008 seengte 8)
VAT impairment 431 -
Payroll and related taxes 2,849 1,988
Provisian for doubttul accounts and impairment of prepayments and available-for-sale investments 3,118 160
Consulting services 1,659 1959
Suspenstan lasses 887 -
Taxes other than income tax 976 1,024
D 292 281
Provision for absolete inventory 273 296
Business trip expenses 253 207
Materials 179 227
Cormnmunication 175 16
Rent 148 144
Bank charges 106 176
Other 856 1,027
16,079 7605
Attributable ta:
Continued operations 16,079 7423
Discontinued operations - 182
16,079 7,605

Suspension losses of USD 887 thousand represent expenses incurred on the suspensian of the Shalkiya Mine and Kentau concentrator
in November 2008. Suspension losses include payments to employees upon termination of their employment (LiSD 188 thousand),
depreciation of property, plant and equipment (USD 515 thousand) and mine maintenance expenses {USD 184 thousand),

10. Distribution Costs

1n thausands of USD 2008 2007
Railway services 420 704
Packaging expenses 98 108
Other 80 a5
598 207
Attributable ta:
Continued operations 598 769
Discontinued operations - 138
598 907
3 9 ShalkiyaZine N.V.
Arnwsal Report ang Accounts 2008
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 December 2008

11. Personnel Expenses

nthasands ol USD 2008 2007
Salaries and wages 5103 5914
Payroll taxes 85% 808
6,962 6.722
Attributable to:
Cantinued aperations 6,962 6,588
Discontinued operations - 134
6,962 6,722
12, Average Number of Employess in FTE
2008 2007
Directors B 8
Kentau concentratar 334 380
Shalkiya Mine 519 638
Administrative personne) 79 82
940 1,108
13. Depreciation
in thousands ef USD 2008 2007
Mine development costs 108 iyl
Buildings and constructian 471 387
Machinery and production equipmant 2,918 22N
Vehicles 568 38
Other 76 N
3,647 2908
Attributable to:
Continued operations 3,647 2,840
Discontinued operations - 68
3.647 2908
14. Finance Income and Costs
in thowsands of USD 2008 2007
Finance income
Interest income related to avaitable-for-sale investments 58 235
Interest income fram bank daposits - 206
58 441
Finance costs
Interest expense on BTA Bank barrowings and commissians 3,720 270
Unwinding of discount on provision for future site restaration (note 29) 274 190
Unwinding of discount on long-term trade payables (note 31) 326 -
Unwinding of discount on due to the RepubE of Kazakhstan (note 30) 248 103
4,565 563
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 December 2008

15. Income Tax
Incame tax benefitf(expense) compsised the fallowing:
2007
ftertated -
I thousands of 3D 2008 e nole %)
Delerred income tax benelitj{expense) 4,334 27N
Current income tax expense - (242)
4,334 (3,033)
Attributable to;
Continued operations 4334 (2.990)
Discontinued opevatians - {43)
4,334 (3,033)
A numerical recancilfation between tax (benefit)jexpense and the product of accounting loss multiplied by the applicabe tax rate was as
follows for the year ended 31 December:
2007
{revtated -
Inthousands oS USD 2008 tee note 5)
Loss before tax from conltinuing operations (47.165) {602)
Profit before tax from a discontinued aperation - 143
Lass before income tax (47,165) 459)
Statutory tax rate 30% 30%
Theoretical income tax at statutory tax rate (14,150) (138)
Change in unrecognised tax losses (s98) 2,099
Non-deductible expenses 2,761 1115
Income tax exempt revenue - {43)
Reduction In deferred tax assets resulting from reduction In tax rate 7,753 -
Income tax [benefit)fexpense (4,334) 3,033
Attributable to:
Continued aperations (4,339) 2890
Discantinued operations - 43
(4,334) 3033
4 ‘l ShalkiyaZine N.V.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

15. Incame Tax continued
Deferred income tax at 31 December refates ta the fallowing:

Comobdated Consabdated statement
alance sheet of aperations
2007 o 2007
(restated - (restated -
I thoxsands of USD 2008 seenaleS 2008 seenote 5)
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and exploration costs 1,788 - 1,788 {389)
Long-term payable a5 289 {194) 289
Allowance for doubtfid debts 62 170 (108) 170
Tax losses carried forward 5432 3,698 1.734 {953)
Accruals and provisions 203 267 (64) (292)
. 7,580 4424 3,156 {1,175)
Deferred tax liabilities
Property. plant ang equipment and exploration costs - {967) 967 (560)
Intercompany loan (347) {1,056) 209 (1.056)
(847) (2.023) 1176 {1,616}
Total net deferred tax assets 6,733 240 4,332 (2,791)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for al deductable temparary ditferences and carry forward of unkised tax losses ta the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit wil be avallable against which the deductable temporary diffetences and camy forward of unused tax
losses can be utillsed. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Management's
assessment of secaverabifity of the deferred tax assets is based an the plan to complete the construction of the New Processing Plant
and resume praduction in 2012 (note 2). Based on our depasit’s resources, additional external ore studles, and external technological
and commercial [easibillty studies, management believes that the Group will generate sufficlent taxable profits starting from 2012 to
utilize tax tosses carry forward recugnized as of 31 December 2008 befare they expire.

The carrying value of recagnised tax losses at 31 December 2008 was USD 36,213 thousand {2007: USD 12,327 thousand) and the
uncecagnised tax foss at 31 December 2008 was USD 6,967 thousand {2007: USD 6,667 thousand). According to Kazakhstan tax
legislation, tax losses can be carried farward for seven years from the date of their origination. The unrecognized tax losses were
originated in the periods befare 2005.

The foreign exchange gain or foss and interest on intercompany loan are income tax deductible in Kazakhstan and exempt from
corporate income tax in the Netherfands.

The movements in the deferred tax assets were as follows for the years ended 31 December:

2007

estated -

0 thawsands of USO 2008 see note 5)
At 1 fanuary 2,401 5192
Charged to the consolidated staternent of operatlons 4,334 (2.990)
Discantinued operation - (43)
Tanslation difference {2) 242
At 31 December 6,733 2401

In December 2008 the Covemment of the Republic of Kazakhstan approved amendments to the tax code effective 1 January 2009,
in accordance to which the statutory income tax rates are changed to 20% In 2009, 12.5% in 2010 and 15% fram 2011 onwards.
The Group's calculation of deferred tax and income tax expense reflects these changes in the tax law.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

16. Discontinued Cperation
tn 2007 the Group disposed of its whally-owned subsidlary, Stone Crushing Plant, which was considered as a separate major line of
business. Major classes of assets and fiabifities of Stone Crushing Piant as of the date of disposal were as follows:

In1housands of LSD

Property, plant and equipment 1,713
Exploration costs 404
{nventaries 259
VAT recelvable 196
Prepayments 3600
Trade and other receivables 98
Cash and cash equivalents 187
Total assets 6457
Trade and other payabiles 6,307
Taxes payable 6
Total liabilities 6,313
Net assets disposed 144
Exchange gain 4
Gain on disposal 257
Cansideration received in cash 405
Consideration received in cash 405
Cash disposed with the subsidiary {187)
The results of Stane Crushing Plant fos the period from 1 lanuary 2007 to 30 June 2007 were as follows:
h Drousands of USD
Revenue 659
Cost of sales {451)
Gross profit 208
General and administrative expenses (182)
Distribution costs {138)
Other expenses (2
Loss before income tax (114)
Tax benefit 34
Net loss for the pertod (80)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary 257
Attributable Income tax expense {1
Profit after tax for the perlad from dl<continued operations 100
4 3 ShalldyaZine N.v.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

17. Property, Piant and Equipment

Mne Comtruction
e ndprewen festated -

Inthaunands o LSD \and ooty equipment Vehicles Other seenates) Totat
Cost
At 1 lanuary 2007 45 4267 39717 12,158 3865 614 3,054 24,480
Additions (restated} S 56 42 3986 319 15 34437 38960
Transfers - 310 817 10,380 1 {6) {n,302) -
Disposal of subsidiary 8 - (26) (1,187) o1) {13 (589) (1.911)
Disposals - - - e (58 @ 3 )
Teanslation difference 3 192 268 677 ri) M 170 1,365
At 31 December 2007 48 4,825 4878 5,751 557 712 25,633 62404
AddRions - - 1189 1599 1 61 2467 5.317
Transters - 192 3293 4 7 (3.496) -
Disposals - (82) (52) B31) - ?) (32) (500)
Transiation difference n (15} (24) {122) (k)| (3) (102) {270)
At 31 December 2008 47 3,895 7016 30,190 559 174 24,470 66,951
Accumulated depreciation and Impalrment
At 1 January 2007 - (549) (832) 4122) (107} (167) - 5277)
Depredation charge - {121} (387) 227) {38) fo1) - (2,908)
Disposal of substdiary - - - 185 - 13 - 198
Disposals - - - 137 24 27 - 188
Transiation difference - (14) (63) {273) (6} {10} - (365)
At 31 December 2007 - (684) (1.282) (6343) (127) {228) ~ {8,664)
Deprediation charge - (108) {477) {2918) 6 (76) - (3,640
Impairment {note 19) - - (1.569) {11.544) {48) {124) (1.207) {14.492)

isposals - - 35 212 -~ 3 - 250
Translation difference - 3 13 87 1 2 6 112
At 31 December 2008 - (789)  (3.280) (20.506) {242) (423)  (1,201) (26,441)
Net book valua
At 31 December 2007 48 4141 3,596 19,408 430 484 25,623 53,740
At 31 December 2008 47 3,939 2,903 9,684 17 351 23,269 40,510

Property, plant and equipment with 2 net carrying value of USD 17,795 thousand and USD 6,376 thousand, at 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007, respectively, have been pledged to secure Group barrawings (note 28).

Due to the suspension of the operating activities In November 2008, the Group stand-by its mining and processing refated property,
plant and equipment.

Additions to property, plant and equipment include the amount of USD 1,192 thousand refated to the change in estimate of site
restoration costs {note 29).

In 2008, the Group was in defauit of scheduled payments to a supplier of fixed assets. in 2009, the supplier imposed limitations on the
use of delivered equipment with the canying amount of USD 3.439 thousand (note 31).
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

18. Exploration Custs

0 thoutands of WO 2008 2007
8alance at the beginning of the period 1494 777
Additions 70 23
Sate of subskfiary - (404)
Impairmark (note 19) {1,553) -
Trandiation difference {11} 98
Balance at the end of the period - 1,494

19, Impairment

The Group perlormed impairment test for its property, plant and equipment refated to the Shalkiya Mine and New Processing Plant
(the Shalkiya CGU), the assets related ta the Kentay concentratar and exploration costs related to the Talap field.

The Shalkiya CGU

The recoverable amount of the Shalkiya CGU has been determined based on a value in use (*Vit”} calaufation wsing cash flow projections
from tinancial budgets approved by senior management covering a live-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year timeframe are
extrapotated by applying a flat growth rate for the term of the Shalkiya Subsusface Use Contract. No impairment was recorded for the
Shalkiya CGU as its ViU was higher than its camrying value,

The Kentau Concentrator and the Talap Explocation Costs

The global econamic recession has resuited in, among other things, reduced zinc market prices and, as a resuit, suspension af the
Graup's production and selling activities {refer to the golng concern discussion In note 2). Furthermore, uncertaintles regarding the
luture operation of the Kentau concentrator and high processing and transpartation costs resulted in reassessment of the peofitability of
the Talap field. As a result, at 31 December 2008, the Graup fully impaired the Kentau cancentrator and Talap exploration costs with the
carrying value of selated property, plant and equipment and exploration costs amounted ta USD 16,045 thousand due to the
management’s dedision to cease production on the Kentau cancentrator.

20. VAT Receivable

At 31 December 2008 VAT receivable amounted to USD 6,647 thousand (2007: USD 8,355 thousand). In 2008, the Group made
provision for VAT impairment of USD 4,313 thousand, At 31 December 2008, VAT recelvable of USD 3,705 thousand i classified within
non-current assets as the Group does not expect reimbursement of this VAT receivable in 2009 (2007 USD 4.459 thousand).

21. Prepayments

In thousands of USD 2000 2002
Prepayments far equipment and machinery 6,013 3940
Prepayments for consumables and sesvices 878 1,081
tess: Impairment (773) (163)
6,118 4,858
Cassified as:
Non-urrent assets 5,765 3940
Current assets 353 918

6,118 4,858

The movements in the impairment afowance wese as follows for the years ended 31 December:

1 thownands ol USD 2088 2007
Allowance at the beginning of the year (163} {5)
Charge for the year (610} (158)
Allowance at the end of the year (773) (163)
4 5 ShalklysZinc NV,
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

22. Inventorles
i thowsands of USD 2008

2007

Stores and matestals {at cost) 3,81 5,124
Less: Alowance for obsalete and slow-maving inventostes (550) {300)
3,261 4,824

Finished goods (at net realisable vakie) 49 1,257
Work-in-process {at nat realisable value) 2,250 1,089
5,551 7,180

In 2008, the write down of finished goods and work-in-process recognized as expense amaunted to USD 1, 035 thousand {2007 nil).

The movements in the allowance for obsolete and slow-maving inventories were as follows for the years ended 31 December:

I thowands of USD 2008 2007
Allowance 3t the beginning of the year {300) {4)
Charge for the year (273} {296)
Wiite-offs 23 -
Allowance at the end of the yeas (550) {300)
23. Trade and Other Recelvables
n thousands of USD 2008 2007
Trade receivables 467 3.185
Other accounts recelvable 275 206
Less: Allowance for doubtiul debts {a11) (104)
n 3,287

Other accounts receivable include receivables from services rendered ta third parties. The movements in the allowance for doubitful

debts were as follows for the years ended 31 December:

In thoutands of USD 2008 2007
Allowance at the beginning of the year {104) -
Charge for the year (3%2) {104}
Wirite-offs 85 -
Allowance at the end of the year (4n) {104)
As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:
Na'n::em Past due but not inpawed

tn thousandy of USD ot mﬁ <0das  0-90days  90-20days  120-350days >360days
2008 33 4 52 275 - - -
2007 3,287 2578 503 206 - - -
At 31 December, the Group's trade and othes receivables were denominated in various currencies as follows:
{nthousands ot USD 2008 2007
Tenge 331 709
US Daffars - 2578

331 3,287

ShalkiyaZine WLV,
Annudl Report and Accounts 2008
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

24, Avallable-For-Sale Investments

hihousands of USD 2008 2007
BTA Bank bonds 211 2,120
Fair value adjustment - B47)
Loss: impairment f2,111) -
- 1,773

On 13 March 2007 the Group purchased BTA Bank bonds for a consideration of USD 2,085 thousand. Maturity date of bonds is 29 June
2036. At 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 bonds have been pledged to secure BTA Bank borrowings (note 28). In 2008, BTA
HBank stapped paying interest on these bands and infarmed the Group about its financial difficulties. The Group recognized imparment
on the carrying value of these investments as it is uniBkely that the asset wauld be recoverable. At 31 December 2008, fair value losses of
USD 376 thousand recorded in equity were reclassifled to the consolidated statement of operations due to impaiment of these
investments.

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents

n thousands of USD 2008 2007
Cash in banks, USD denominated 122 32
Cash on hand, KZT denominated 40 28
Cash in banks, KZT denaminated 7 32
Cash in deposit, USD denominated - 1,145
Cash in banks, EUR denominated 333 1

502 1518

Cash in the amount of USD 147 thousand comprise restsicted cash depusit held by the Group in a special bank account pursuant to the
Shalkiya Subsusface Use Cantract (2007: USD 72 thousand), At 31 December 2008 the Group's cash of USD 183 thousand was held in
BTA Bank (2007: USD 103 thousand).

26. Equity

The authorized share capital of ShalkiyaZinc N.V. is EUR 225,000, divided Into 22,500,000 shares each with 2 naminal vatue of EUR 0.01
per share. The issued share capital of ShalkiyaZine NV. is EUR 56,500 divided into 5,650,000 shares each with a nominal value of EUR
0.01 per share, equivalent to USD 83,219 at an exchange rate of USD 1.4729.

Accarding to the Company's Articles of Association, the Company's reserves may be distributed to shareholders, provided that total
shareholders’ equity exteeds the called-up and paid-up capital of the Campany.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Foreign cumrency translation seserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the transiation of the financial statements from
functional cutrency into presentation cumency.

Net Unrealized Loss Reserve

Net unrealized loss reserve represents non-distributable revaluation reserve that has been recorded for the amount of the fair value
change in avallable-for-sale investments {note 24},

Loss Per Shase
The numerator for the calculation of the basic toss per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 is the loss after tax of USD 41,951
thousand {2007: USD 3,592 thousand) and the denominator for the calcufation of the baslc loss per share is 5,650,000.

2008 2007
Lass per share, In US cents [758.07) {61.81)
Diluted loss per share, in US cents 758.07) {61.81}
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders, in thousands of USD (42,331} (3.492)
Issued Ordinary Shares at the end of the year 5,650,000 5,650,000
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

26. Equity continued

{a) From Continuing Operations

The numerator for the calculatian of the basic foss per share from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2008 is the
lass aftes tax of USD 41,951 thousand (2007: USD 3,592 thousand) and the denosminator fos the calculation of the basic loss per share
is 5,650,000.

2008 2007
Loss per share, in US cents (758.07 63.57)
Diluted loss per share, inUS cents (758.07 {63.57)
Loss attsibutable to ardinary shaneholders, in thousands of USD (42,831) {3.599)
Issued Ordinary Shares at the erid of the year 5,650,000 5,650,000

(b} From Discontinued Operatians
The aumeratar for the calculation of the basic prafit pes share from discontinyed aperatians is the profit after tax of USD100 thousand
and the denominator for the calculation of the baslc profit per shase s 5,650,000.

2000 2007
Pralit per shace, in US cents - 176
Diluted profit per share, in US cents - 1.76
Profit attributable ta ordinary shareholders, in thousands af USD - 100
Issued Ordinary Shares at the end of the year 5,650,000 5650000

Reimbursement of 1PO Issuance Costs

Reimbursement of IPO issuance costs is related to the amount paid by Bank of New York in accordance with the letter-agreement
{or depasitary services. In accordance with this letter-agreement Bank of New York was obfiged to reimburse the Company

up to USD 70.000 per miflion of depositary receipts outstanding upon completion of the IPO stablization period towards the
Company's establishment, maintenance, investor refations, legal lees, exchange listing and ather GDR programme-related services
upon establishment.

In 2008, Bank of New Yark pald USD 809 thousand to the Company. This reimbursement was recorded in equity as an increase in the
share premium.

27. Equity Settled Employee Benefits Reserve

The Group operated an ownership-based campensation scheme for the Chairman of the Supervisory Board. In accardance with the
provisions of the plan, he was granted options to purchase Ocdinary Shares. For aption serles granted at 7 December 20086, the exescise
price was equal to the offering price of the GDRs at 7 December 2006 and for aption series granted at any date other than 7 December
2006, the exercise price was the average of the closing share prices of ShalkiyaZinc on each of the thirty days {30) prior to the relevant
grant date. Each share option canverts into one Ordinary Share on exercise. No amounts were paid ar payable by the recipient an recelpt
of the optien. The options carried neither rights to dividends nor voting rights. Options could be exercised at any time from the date of
vesting to the date of their expiry. Vesting was conditional upon the working for the Company over the two years. The number of
granted options was calculated from the USD amount af five times the option's holder annual campensation as of the relevant grant
date divided by the relevant exercise price and was subject to approval by the Remuneration Committee, in 2008, the Chairman of the
Supervisary Board resigned from the Company. This resignation was considered as cancellation of the scheme on lorteiture, and
accordingly, any previously recognized tosses were reversed In the consoldated statement of opesations.

There wire no additional options granted.
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

28. Barrowings
 homsands ol USD 2008 2007
Opening balance 10,484 2,504
Bosrowings granted 18,480 7567
intesest expensed lor the period 2,694 270
Capitafised borrowing costs - 348
Foreign exchange difference (75) 845
Transiation dil ference {127) -
31,456 11534
Less: amount repaid (957} {1,050)
Closing batance 30,499 10,484
Less: current partion shown within curent ¥ablities {7.866}) (6,274)

22,633 4,210

The barrowings are due to BTA Bank. The bomowings are secured by the Group's property, plant and equipment with the carrying
amount of USD 17,795 thousand at 31 December 2008 (2007: USD 6,376 thousand) and available-for-sale investments with the nil
carrying amount at 31 December 2008 [2007: USD 1.773 thousand).

In 2008, a member of the Group's Board of Directors was 3 member of the Board of Directors of BTA Bank. The sudden suspension or
elimination af bustness transactions with BTA Bank could severely impact the operations of the Group,

At 31 December 2008, the Group complied with the terms of the loan contracts with BTA Bank. Subsequently in 2009, the Group fafled
to make scheduled payments of USD 331 thousand under certain loan contracts with BYA Bank. The failure to make scheduled payments
of elther principal or interest constitutes default under the loan contracts with BTA Bank. The loan cantracts also provide for a cross-
default in case of non-performance OF non-payments under contracts with third parties in the amount exceeding USD 300 thousand.

As discussed in nate 37, the Group falled to make scheduled payments of USD 765 thousand, This event constitutes a cross-default
under the loan contracts. Both default and cross-default under the loan contracts give BTA Bank the right to acceferate repayment of ali
8TA Bank toans.

The borrowings comprised the foliowing at 31 December:

\n thouvands of USD 2000 2007
Fixed interest rate borrawings 29,677 8,507
Weighted average interest rate 16.00% 16.00%
Variable interest rate borrowings §22 1,976
Weighted average interest rate 51% 10.18%

At 31 December the borowings were denaminated in various cusrencies as fallows:

in thawusands o3 USD 2008 2007
US Doltar 12,149 10,129
Tenge 12,721 S
Rubles 629 350

30,499 10,484

29. Provision for Future Site Restoration

nthousands of U 2008 2007
At 1 famary 2,241 2018
Change in estimate 1192 -
Unwinding of discount 274 103
Translation difference {10} 120
At 31 Decemnber 3,697 2,241
Restﬁctedcashonaqaedaldepodt(mteﬁ) 147 72
Unfunded portion of the provision 3,550 2,169
4 9 Shalkiyazine ALY,
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

25. Provislon for Future Site Restoration continued

The provision for future site restoration felates to the contractual obligations cantained in the Shatkiya Subsurface Use Contract to
testore and make the mines sale after use and the estimated costs of cleaning up any chemical leakage. The majority of these costs are
expected ta be incurred towards the end of the life of the mine. The extent and cast of future remediation programimes are inherently
ditficult to estimate. They depend on the estimated life of the mines, the scale of any possible contamination and the timing and extent
ol corrective actions.

The loflawing are the key assumptions onwhich the discounted carrying amount of the obfigation is based:

* The total undiscounted amount of estimatad future cash expenditure to be Incumed is 19.000.987 thousand Tenge
{USD 157,358 thousand).

* The expectad timing of the majority of the future cash expenditure is expected to take place at the end of the Shalklya Subsurface
Use Contract in 20486,

* The long-term inflation rate is 5% per annum,

* The discount rate appliad is 8% per annum,

30. Due to the Republic of Kazakhstan

I thousands of USD 2008 2007
At 1 lanuary 1,906 1716
Unwinding of discount 245 190
Foreign exchange difterences 49 -
At 31 December 2,200 1,906

The Group accrued the discounted carrying amount of its obligation to reimburse the Goverament of Kazakhstan for the historical cost
of gealogical studies performed by the Covernment in respect of the Talap deposit.

The fallowing is a summary of the key assumptions on whick the discounted canrying amount of the oblgation is based:

* The total undiscounted amount of historical costs outlined in the Talap Subsuriace Use Contract is 459,995 thousand Tenge
{USD 3,810 thousand),

* The reimbursement of the obligatian Is expected to accurin 40 equal, quarterly instalments, commencing on 1 fanuary 2009 and
ending on 31 December 2018.

* The discount rate applied is 12% per annum,

31. Trade and Other Payables

In thoysands ol USD 2008 2007
Payabias for equipments and construction Materials 4,752 3179
expenses 2,148 614
Trade accounts payable for services 1,333 2984
Payables to employees 565 534
Other 180 26
8,983 7337
Less: Due within ane year (7.096) {4.567)
Long-term trade payables 1,887 2,770

As of 31 Decembes 2008, the Group did not comply with the terms of the contract for supply of equipment. The Group did not make
scheduled payments in the amount of USD 234 thousand. This contract for supply of equipment does not have any penalty clauses on
{ate payments. Management believes that such non-compliance does not accelerate repayment and did not reclassify the non-currant
portion of the payables ta current payables.

32. Financlal Instruments and Finaneial Risk Management Objectives and Policles
The Group's principal financial instruments consist of bank borrowings, dues the Republic of Xazakhstan, cash and short-term deposits,
available-for-sale investments as well as trade and other recelvables and trade and other payables,

The main risks arising from the Group's financlal instruments are Interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liqukfity risk and credit sisk.
The Group's management reviews and agrees polldies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk i the risk that the value of a fingncial Instrument will luctuate due to changes in market interest sates, The Group's
€xposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primasiy to the Company's long-term borrawings with fioating interest
t2tes. The Group's poficy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable interest rate borrowings.

5 O Shalxlyazine NV,
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

32. Financlal Instruments and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policles continued
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity ta a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all ather variables held constant,
of the Group’s loss before income tax (through the impact on floating rate bosrowings). There is no Impact on the Graup's equity.

2008 2007
locteaseMecrease in Eftecton profic Brenefdecrene in £llect on protit

W thowsands o USD Basks points befors tax basis powts belore tax
US Daltar +55 {5) +50 ®
-55 5 ~50 8

* Onc basis patnt = 0.01%

Currency Risk

As 2 result of signiticant bofrowings, accounts payable, dues to the Repubkc of Kazakhstan and cash and cash equivalents denominated
in various currencies, the Group's consofidated balance sheet can be alfected significantly by movement in exchange rates. The Group
does not hedge its foreign curmency risks.

The fallowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to reasanably possible changes In the exchange rates, with ali ather variables held
constant, of the Group's loss before income tax {due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and Sabflities),

2008 2007

I ¥ sa In rollt | in Etlect on protit

—— B e T
US Oolar +25% {4,280} +5% (634)
+40% (5,849) -5% 634

EUR +30% {300) +5% {94)
+40% (299) -5% 94

RUR : +10% (63) +5% b))
-10% 63 5% 2

Credit Risk

The Group endeavars to trade only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. it is the Group's paticy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. in addition, recelvable batances are mgnitored on an ongoing basis
with the resuit that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

sale investments, the Company’s €xposute to credit risk arises fram defayit of the counterparty, with a8 maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments. The Group has aiso significant concentration risk related to cash and cash equivalents, of which

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle all abllities as they fali due,

The table below summarises the maturity prafile of the Group's finandial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

Ouelaterthan  Duefates than Duelater

onemonth  thive montts Waaone
but aot but not your but
Gterthan fatevthan mot later than Oue alter

nthowsands of USD Ondemand  three moaths one yrar {veyean bve years tota)
At 31 December 2008
Borrowings {see also notes 28and 37) - 2,123 9,179 25,723 - 41,075
Trade and other accaunts payable 7,085 281 599 2,523 - 10,488
Due to the Repubtic of Kazakhstan - - 381 1,524 1,905 3,810

7,085 2404 10,159 33,820 1,905 55373
At 31 December 2007
Borrowings - - 877 14473 3335 18,685
Teade and other accqunts payable 4567 220 520 3403 - 8710
Due ta the Republic of Kazakhstan - - - 1,524 2,286 3810

4567 220 1,397 19400 5.621 31,205
5 1 ShatkdyazZine NV,
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

29, Financial Instruments and Einanclal Risk Management Objectives and Policles continued
Commadity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to the effect of fluctuations in the prices of zinc and lead, which is quoted in USD on intemational markets. The

Cnmpmrepares annual budgets and periodic farecasts nduding sensitivity analyses in respect of various levels of Zinc and tead prices
inthe e.

The Company has histarically not hedged its expasure to the risk of fluctuations in the price of its products.

Falr Values of FInancial Instruments
Set out belaw is a comparisan by category of carrying amaunts and fais vahres of all of the Group's financial instruments:

Carrying amoust faarvalue

0 thoutands of USD 2008 2007 2008 2007
Flnancial assats
Cash and cash equivalents 502 1518 502 1,518
Trade and other receivable 331 3,287 a3l 3,287
Available-for-sale investments - 1,773 - 1,773
Financlal liabilities

ings 30,499 10484 29,960 12,106
Trade and other payables 8,983 7,337 8,983 7337
Due to the Republic of Kazakhstan 2,200 1,906 2,200 1,906

The fair value of borrowings has been calcutated by discaunting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintaing healthy capital ratigs in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Graup manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in ght of changes in economic conditions. To maintain ar adjust
the capita! structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to the shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issue new shares,
No changes were made in the objectives, Policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 2008.

33. Non-Cash Transactions
In 2007, the Group capitalized interest on bank loans of USD 346 thousand to property, plant and equipment (2008: nil}. This transaction
has been excluded from the consolidated cash flow statement.

34, CammItments and Contingencies

Commitments

Training

Pursuant to the Talap Subsurface Use Contract, the Group is obliged to finance the professional training of the Kazakhstani statf for not
less than 1% of operating costs during the production pesiod.

Liquidation Fund

Pursuant to the Talap Subsurface Use Contract, the Group is obfiged to accumulate cashina spedcial bank account in the amount of not
tess than 1% of exploration and operating costs {capped at USD 7,767 thousand) to fund future site restoration costs related to
obfigations to restore and make safe mines after use and the estimated costs of cleaning up any chemical leakage.

At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group was not in compiiance with the Iiquidation fund commitment. However, the Group's

management belleves that any issues of non-campliance will be resolved thraugh negotiations or corrective actions withaut any material
effect on the Group’s financial position, statement of operatians, or cash flows.

5 2 ShalkysZinc NV,
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

34, Commitments and Contingencles continued

Capital and Operational Expendituses
In accordance with the working programme under the Shalkdya Subsurface Use Contract the Group has the following commitments:
Cipitsl Operational
Year expenditufes  expenditures
2012 2436 2538
20M 1,236 2,637
2013-2046 20,750 76,097
Total 24422 81,272

The working programme for the development and production under the Talap Subsurface Use Contract has nat been yet approved by
the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resousces of the Repub¥c of Xazakhstan,

Insusance

The insurance industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan Is in the process of development, and many forms of insurance coverage common
in developed markets are not yet generally avallable. The Group does not have tull coverage for its mining, processing and transportation
{acilities, lor business intersuption, or for third party Kabilities in respect of praperty or environmental damage arising from accidents on
the Group's property or relating to the Group's operations.

Taxation

Kazakhstan's tax fegistation and regulations are subject to angaing changes and varying interpretations, Instances of inconsistent
opinions between lacal, regional and national tax uthosities are not unusual. The current regime of penalties and interest related to
reparted and discovered vialations of Kazakhstan's tax laws are severe. Penalties are generally 50% of the taxes additionally assessed and
interest is assessed at the refinancing rate established by the Natfonal Bank of Kazakhstan multiplied by 2.5. As a result, penalties and
interest can amount to multiples of any assessed taxes, Flscal periods remain apen ta review by tax authorities for five calendar years
preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover ianger periods. 8ecause of the uncertainties associated
with Kazakhstan's tax system, the ultimate amgunt of taxes, penakties and interest, it any, may be in excess of the amount expensed to
date and accrued at 31 December 2008, As at 31 December 2008 management belleves that its interpretation of the refavant
legisiation is appropriate and that it is probable that the Group's tax positions will be sustained.

Environmental Matters

The Group is subject to various environmental laws and regulations of the Republic of Kazakhstan, Other than that disclosed below,
rmanagement believes that there are no probable or possible enviconmental llabifities which could have a matertal adverse effect on the
Group's financial position, consolidated statement of operations or cansolidated cash flows. in 2008 and 2007, the Group was a
defendant in a legal actlon invalving 2lleged environmental paliution in the amount of USD 3,218 thousand. in February 2009, according
to the decision ol the Callegiate Organ on Civil Affairs of the Southem Kazakhstan Oblast Caurt the amount ctaimed from the Group was
reduced to USD 1,410 thousand. Management believes that the action can be successfully defended and therefore no tosses will be
incurred and no provision has been made in these consolidated financlal statements far the legal claim.

Lagal Clalms

The Group is subject ta various tegal proceedings related to business operations, such as property damage claims. The Group's
management does not belleve that pending or threatened claims of these types, individually or in aggregate, are Ekety to have any
material adverse effect on the Group's financial pasition of results of aperations. The Group assesses the likefihood of material lfabikties
and makes provisions in Its financial statements only where it is prabable that events giving rise ta the hability will occur and the amount
of the fiabliity can be reasonably estimated.

35. Related Party Transactians

Related parties include key management personnel of the Group, enterprises in which a substanttal interest in the voting power is
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group's key management personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including any Directar (whether
executive or atherwise) of the Group, Related party transactions were made on terms agreed to between the parties that may not
necessarily be at market ratas.

Sale of Stone Crushing Plant
In 2007, the Group sold its fully owned subsidiary Stene Crushing Plant for USD 405 thousand. 40% of shares of Stone Crushing Plant

were acquired by Palymetall Resources Lid, owned by General Director Marat Sarkytbayev (80%) and Business Develapment Directar
Samat Kazymov (20%).
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

35. Refated Party Transactions continued

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel comprise members of the Group's management and members of Supervisory Board, totalling elght persons
at 31 Cecember 2008 (31 December 2007: eight persons). Compensation to key management personnel consists of short-term
employee bensfits and equity settied employee benefits (note 27), Since the Company does not pay sacial securities or pensians, all
salary payments are cansidered as short-term employee benefits, Total compensation paid to key management personnel amounted to
USD 695 thousand fof the year ended 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007; USD 1,534 thousand). Equity settied employee benefits
relate only to the membar of Supervisory Board. There were no Payments to the Non-Executive Disectors In 2008 and 2007, except for
those induded in the table below.

Names Poutian 2008 2007
Sarkytbaev Marat General Director 286 709
Tokbaev Bagdat Fonmer Finance Director 99 78
Abuov Asylbek Deputy Genesal Director 33 236
Svoik Yelena Current Finance Directoc 69 N
Yaimov Gabit Economic Secusity Director 79 37
Kazymoav Samat Business Development Director 80 86
Azelgareyeva Ramilya Director of Finance and Economics Department 56 73
Graham McCartney Member of Supervisory Board {62) 224
Total 695 1,534
2008 2007
Breakdown by types
Wages and salaries 860 1,433
Share option (release)fcharge {165) 101
Total 695 1,534

At 31 December 2008, receivables from key management personnel amounted to USD 32 thousand and were presented within other
recelvables {2007: USD 23 thousand).

At 31 December 2008, payables to key management personnel amaunted to USD 34 thousand and were presented within other
payables (2007: USD 30 thousand).

Henk van Wijlen, Corporate Secsetary, was not paid in 2008 and 2007,

36. Auditors' Remuneration
10 Ihowsands of USD 2008 2007

Audit and review of finandlal infarmation of the Group 310 300
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SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

37. Subsequent Events
i} As announced to the market in the Campany’s press release on 1 May 2009, the Graup has appiled for a suspenston of trading in its
CORs pending publication of its audited financial information for the year ended 31 December 2008. The UK Financial Services

Authority has approved the Company’s application and with eflect from the opening of business on Friday § May 2009, trading in the
Company’s GDRs has been suspended.

ii} in J2nuary 20009, the Group entered into an agreement with BTA Bank for restructuring of certain BTA Bank’s borrowings, The
festructuring resulted to a revision of the payment schedule and consequently a revision of the matusity profile of the Group™s
borrowings as follows:

Duelsterthan  Duclaler than Due later
cnemonth  Uuweemonths Yunaone
but not but not yedr bt
Later than Lgerthan  not tatet than Due after
{nthousands of SO Qndemand  three months one year fhve years ive years Totad
Borrowings - 322 997 40,461 - 50,858

In 2008, the Group failed to comply with certain restrictive covenants of the BTA Bank toan contracts (note 28). In accordance with the
General loan agreement a breach of cavenants constitutes an event of default and BTA Bank may requite accelerated repayments of
these loans as this Incompliance constitutes default event under the General Ioan agreement.

Also, the Graup's falure to make scheduled payments of BTA Bank loans may result in accruals of fines at 0.22% per day on the overdue
amount. Total amount of the fines estimated to USD 64 thousand as of 29 October 2009. The Group's management believes that BTA
Bank will not require the accelerated payment of Group’s borrowings and no any actlons will be taken by BYA Bank with respect to assets
held as collateral under these loans.

iii) On 4 March 2009, the Shalkiya and Talap Subsurface Use Contracts were terminated Dby the Minlstey of Energy and Mineral Resources
of the Republic of Kazakhstan {the “MEMR") accusing the Campany with illegal IPO in December 2006. The issue is that In accordance
with the Kazakhstani legisiation the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan has the priority right to purchase shares of the
Company In cases of their sale or additiona) issuznce. In other cases, the subsurface users have to obtain a confirmation from the
MEMR on waiving its rights, The Company’s position is that appropriate letters-requests were filed with the MEMR and in the absence
of any objections from the MEMR within 45 days, It was legally presumed that the waiver has been obtained. On 19 May 2009, the
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COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT OF SHALKIYAZINC N.V.
For the year ended 31 December 2008

{BEFORE PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF RESULTS)

pestnedses
In thoarsands o USD Note 2008 Page 31N
Result of subsidiary after taxation 2 (29795 (16
Other income and expense after tax 5  (13,036) (330)
Netioss [42.831) (34%)
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2008

OF SHALKIYAZINC N.V.

3t December
2007
31 Dacembar  (restated 4ce
i thousands o150 2008 page 3738}
Assets
Non-current assets
Financiat fixed assets 2 32,249 58983
32,249 58983
Current assats
Short-temm portion of VAT recelvable 80 -
Short-term loan 2,900 2,500
Accounts receivable 3 1,929 1,547
Cash and cash equivalents 4 444 1,150
5.353 597
Total assets 37602 64,180
Sharehciders’ equity and Habiiitles
Shareholders® equity
Share capital ) 83 83
Share premium 62,164 61,355
Legal reserves 7 3.001 3,103
Equity settied employee benefits reserve 8 - 165
Retained earnings {45.329) (2.498)
20,009 62,208
Non-current liabllitles
Deilvative liability 9 16,735 161
16,735 1671
Current liabllities
Trade payables - 107
Taxes payable 7 9
Accrued fees 851 185
858 301
Total equity and llabilitles 37,602 64,180
5 7 ShalldyaZine NV,
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2008

1. Presentation of Financial Statements and Principal Accounting Policies

The description of the activities of Shalkiya NV, {the “Company”} and the Company structure, as included in the notes to the consolidated
financia) statements, also apply to the Company financlal statements

consokidated financial statements (IFRS). tnvestments in subsidarles are stated at net equity value, as the Company effectively exercises
significant inffsence aver them. For more information on the accounting policies applied, and an the notes to the consolidated financlal
statements, please refer to pages 29 to 55,

The total equity and profit in the Company financial statements is equal to the consolidated equity.

In accordance with section 402 of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Givil Code, a condensed incame statement is included in these
financial statements,

2. Financial Fixed Assets
Financial fixed assets consist of the following:

2007

frestated = see

Inthowsands of USD 2008 pages 37-38)
tong-term lpan 53,804 50,731
investment in the subsidiary (21,555) 8,252

32,249 58983

The negative equity value of the investment in the subsidiary is considered to be a pravision on the lang-term {oan due fram the subsidiasy.
The movement of the fong-term loan is as follows:

In Bhousands of USD 2008 2007
Opening balance at 1 January 53,231 73,000
s over the year - {23,000)
Restatement of loan part 3,073 k£
Borrowing granted during the year 400 2,500
Closing balanca at 31 December 56,704 53,231
Less: current portion shown under current assets {2,900) {2.500)
Non-current portion 53,804 50,731

The loan is related to the subsidiary of the Company. At 31 Dacember 2008 the loan increased by USD 400 thousand to USD 56,704
thousand. Shart-tesm l02n of USD 2,500 thousand is payable on demand and bears interest of 12% per annum. The new (0an with total
amount of USD 400 thousand is short-term and bears no intesest.

The loan amaunt of USD 53,804 thousand biears an annyal Interest rate based upon the pretax profit eamed by the subskdiary. The
elfective interest rate fo the loans is 9.75%. The Inans are repayable in 2061, The loans are unsecured and repayment is subordinated to
rights of other creditors.

The investment in the subsidiary is relating to ShaldyaZine Ltd LLP and is stated at net equity value, 3s the Company effactively exercises
significant influences over the subsidiary,
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2, Financtal Fixed Assets continued
The movements of the investment in the subsidiary were as follows:

(a thossands of YSD

Balance as at 31 January 2007
Book value

(14.814)
Movements 2007
ninkind 23,000
Asset revaksation reserve (247)
Cumnulative transtation adjustment 3575
Result of the subsidiary for the period (3.162}
Balance as at 31 December 2007 {as restated)
Book value 8,252
Movements 2008
Asset revaluation reserve a
Cumulative translation adjustment {359)
Resuit of the subsidiary for the period {29,795)
Balance as at 31 December 2007
8ook value {21,555)
3, Accounts Recelvable
In thousaness of LSO 2008 2007
Receivable from the subsidiary 1.929 1,546
Other accounts receivable - 1
1.929 1547
4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
In thousands o USD 2008 2007
Cash in deposit, USD denominated - 1145
Cash in banks, USD denominated 333 4
Cash in banks, EUR denomingted m 1
444 1150
5. Other Income and Expenses
In Bowsands of USD 2008 2007
{Expenses)fincome on loans (11,690) 397
Interest income on deposits 10 -
Other expenses (1.395) (67)
Foreign gain 3 -
(13.036) 330
6. Shareholdars’ Equity
For the statement of change in consolkiated equity for the year ended 31 December 2008, refer to pages 28, 47 to 48.
7. Legal Reserve
0 thaerands o USD 2008 2007
Legal reserve as at 31 December 2007 (3.103) 113
Assets revaluation reserve (347} 347
Cumulative translation adjustment 359 {3.563)
(3.0917) (3.103)
These feserves are not distributable,
5 9 ShalkiyaZine NV,
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2008

8, Equity Settied Employee Benefits Reserve
For details of the equity settied employee benefits reserve, refer to page 48.

9, Derlvative Liabliity

The derivative Hiability & related to the loan glven to the Subskitary {note 2). At 31 December 2008 the amortized cost of the loan
amounted to USD 53,804 thousand (2007: USD 50,731 thousand). The loan bears an annual interest rate based upon the pre-tax profit
eamed by the subsidiary. The effective interest rate for the loan is 9.75%. The lpan is repayable In 2061. The loan Is unsecured and
fepayment is subordinated to rights of other creditars.

The Company designated the “profit linking featuse” within the Parent Company debt as an embedded derivative and classified it as
nan-current flability as the debt to which the derivative is linked i repayable in 2061, This feature Is not closely related to the debt host
contract and therefore requires separation and measurement at fair value thraugh profit and toss. The embedded derivative has bean
classified at fair value through profit and loss.

At 31 December 2008 the falr valve of the derivative fiability of USD 16,235 thousand (2007: USD 1,671 thousand) was determined using
the discounted cash flow analysis, The Company used 12% discount rate which equals the prevailing rates of return for instruments with
the substantially the same terms and charactesistics, such as currency, credit quality and principal repayment.

In 2008 the Company reassessed future pre-tax prolits of the subsidlary {refer to going concern note in the Group's consolidated
financial statements) and as a result fair value foss of USD 15,064 thousand was recorded within other Income and expenses.

SHALKIYAZINC N.V. BOARD

Marat Sarkytbayav (Executive Board M

r. Henk van Wijlen (Executive Boasd Member)

Mrs, Ramilya Azelgareyeva (Executive Board Member)

Mr, Baurzhan Bisembayev (Non-Executive Board Member)
Mr. Talgat Afmkhanav {Non-Executive Board Member),

Delft
29 October 2009

ShalkiyaZing NV,
Statutary Seat Dellt

Other Infermation

Statutory Provision with Respect to Appropriation of Results

According to the Company’s Articles of Assodiation, the Company's resuit is freely at the disposal of the shareholders, provided that total
sharehoiders” equity exceeds the called-up capital of the Caompany, increased by legal and statutory reserves.

Propased Appropriation of Rasults

The Management Board Pioposes to add the net loss oves the period 6 November 2006 up to 3 December 2008, being the first
extended financlal year, in full to the retained earnings.

Directors® Interests

Marat Sarkytbayev and Samat Kazymow, Assylbek Abuov and Rifat Rizoyev respectively hald 13.40%, 11.17% and 49.88% of the issued
share capital of the Company after the Global Otter.

Subsequent Events
Reference Is made to the disclasure note on page 55.
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